
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Telephone No: 
 

 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 247 4707 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH ) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will be held for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
S Bentley - Weetwood; 

J Chapman - Weetwood; 

D Congreve - Beeston and Holbeck; 

M Dobson (Chair) - Garforth and Swillington; 

J Illingworth - Kirkstall; 

M Iqbal - City and Hunslet; 

G Kirkland - Otley and Yeadon; 

A Lamb - Wetherby; 

G Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon; 

L Rhodes-Clayton - Hyde Park and Woodhouse; 

L Yeadon - Kirkstall; 

 
Co-opted Members 

 
       E Mack    -    Leeds Voice 
   Vacancy    -    Leeds LINk 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
To receive and approve the minutes of the 
previous meeting held on 30th June 2009. 
 

1 - 10 

7   
 

  RENAL SERVICES - PROVISION AT LEEDS 
GENERAL INFIRMARY 
 
To consider the attached report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development attaching  
information to allow the Board to consider current 
proposals from LTHT associated with the provision 
of renal services across the Trust, particularly in 
terms of provision at LGI. 
 

11 - 
50 

8   
 

  RENAL SERVICES: PATIENT TRANSPORT 
SERVICE 
 
To consider the attached report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting the 
Scrutiny Board with a report from the Yorkshire 
Ambulance Service on the current performance of 
its Patient Transport Service for renal patients. 
 

51 - 
52 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  JOINT PERFORMANCE REPORT: QUARTER 4 - 
2008/09 
 
To consider the attached report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting the 
joint performance report from NHS Leeds and 
Leeds City Council which provides an overview of 
progress against key improvement priorities and 
performance indicators relevant to the Board at 
Quarter 4, 2008/09. 
 

53 - 
90 

10   
 

  RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
To consider the attached report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development to assist the 
Board in monitoring progress on recommendations 
from previous inquiries. 
 

91 - 
108 

11   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To consider the attached report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting an 
outline work programme for the Board to consider, 
amend and agree as appropriate. 
 

109 - 
124 

12   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday 22nd September 2009 at 10.00am (Pre-
meeting at 9.30am). 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH ) 
 

TUESDAY, 30TH JUNE, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor M Dobson in the Chair 

 Councillors J Illingworth, G Kirkland, 
A Lamb, G Latty, L Rhodes-Clayton and 
L Yeadon 

 
 

1 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Scrutiny Board 
(Health) for this municipal year. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillor G Kirkland declared a personal interest in his capacity as a 
Member of Wharfedale Hospital Board (Minute 8 refers). 
 

3 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor J Chapman, 
Councillor M Iqbal, and Councillor C Townsley.  
 

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 28th April 2009  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 28th April 2009 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

5 Input into the Work Programme 2009/2010 - Sources of Work and 
Establishing the Board's Priorities (Part 1)  

 
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on an 
input into the Board’s work programme for 2009/10 and to identify sources of 
work and establish the Board’s priorities. 
 
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the meeting:- 
 

• Scrutiny Board (Health) - Terms of Reference (Appendix 1 refers). 

• Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011- Executive Summary ( Appendix 2a 
refers) 

• Extract from Leeds’ Director of Public Health Annual Report (2007-
2008)(Appendix 2b refers) 

• List of Scrutiny Board (Health) inquiries undertaken between October 
2003 to April 2009 (Appendix 2c refers). 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

The Chair explained that both Councillor Harrand, Executive Board Member 
for Adult Health and Social Care and John England, Deputy Director 
Partnerships and Operational Effectiveness would make their presentations 
to this item early on the agenda in order that they could attend another 
meeting. 
 
The Executive Board Member for Adult Health and Social Care outlined 
some of the current and future pressures on the Adult Social Services 
Department, including spending levels/ budgetary issues, higher levels of 
expectation and longer life expectancy.  He also raised the issue of the 
separation of Health and Social Care services and the need for continued 
collaborative working between the Council and its NHS Partners, suggesting 
this might be any issue/area that the Board may want to examine during the 
coming year. 
 
The Deputy Director Partnerships and Operational Effectiveness (Adult 
Social Services) outlined the Department’s working relationship with outside 
organisations, such as NHS Leeds  and summarised key activities and 
priorities for the Board to consider including in its work programme, 
including: 
 

• Premature mortality issues 

• Outcomes from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
o  People living longer 
o People (children and young people) needing a good start in life, 
 covering issues such as: 

§ Obesity 
§ Sexual Health 
§ Emotional needs and support 

• Significant issues (when compared regionally and nationally), such as: 
o Obesity 
o Levels of harmful alcohol consumption 
o Drugs 
o Smoking – including local differentials (i.e. health inequality issues) 

• Matters highlighted in the (KPMG) Health Inequalities report, such as: 
o Targeting areas of greatest need 
o Ensuring health issues have a higher profile within the Council 

 
Members commented and sought further clarification on some of the issues 
highlighted for possible inclusion in the Board’s future work programme.  
 
Following detailed discussions, the Chair thanked the Executive Board 
Member and the Deputy Director Partnerships and Operational Effectiveness 
for their contribution and attendance. 
 
The Chair informed the Board that further input into establishing the Board’s 
priorities from external partners would also be discussed later on the 
agenda. 
 
RESOLVED -   That the content of the report and appendices be noted. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

 
6 Co-opted Members  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which  
outlined the provisions to allow the appointment of co-opted members to 
Scrutiny Boards on the following basis: 
 

• Up to five non-voting co-opted members could be appointed to the Board 
for a term of office which did not go beyond the next annual meeting of 
Council; and, 

• Up to two non-voting members for a term of office which related to a 
particular scrutiny inquiry.  

 
The report also made reference to the recently launched Local Involvement 
Network. 
 
It was reported to the Board that both Leeds Voice and Touchstone 
(organisations previously represented on the Scrutiny Board) had indicated a 
desire to continue to be represented on the Scrutiny Board. 
 
The Board discussed the contents of the report in detail and identified the 
potential benefits of appointing co-opted members from Leeds Local 
Involvement Networks (LINk) and to appoint co-opted members on an ad hoc 
basis to assist the Board with its specific inquiries during the municipal year.   
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report be noted. 
(b) That Leeds Voice (Health Forum) be allocated a non-voting co-opted 

seat on the Scrutiny Board (Health) and that Mr E Mack, as a 
representative of Leeds Voice, be appointed for the remainder of the 
2009/10 municipal year. 

(c) That pending the establishment of a formal LINk Steering Group, 
 nominations be sought from Leeds LINk for a representative to act as 
 a non-voting co-opted member on the Board for this municipal year. 
(d) To assist the Board with any specific inquiries during the municipal 

year, that: 
 

(i)  The appointment of non-voting co-opted members (on an ad hoc 
  basis) be kept under review; and, 
(ii)  Consideration be given to the invitation and use of expert 

witnesses. 
 
 
 
 

7 Legislation and Constitutional Changes  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report 
requesting the Board to note the changes to the Council’s Constitution in 
relation to Scrutiny.  Specific matters outlined in the report related to: 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

 

• Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) Provisions 

• Arrangements for the Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Functions and Local 
Crime and Disorder Matters 

• Local Involvement Networks (LINkS) 

• Responding to inquiry report and recommendations 

• Scrutiny of Partners  
 
RESOLVED –  That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
 

8 Input into the Work Programme 2009/2010 - Sources of Work and 
Establishing the Board's Priorities (Part 2)  

 
Further to Minute 4 above, the Chair welcomed the following representatives 
to the meeting:-  
 

• Jill Copeland (Executive Director of Partnerships and Development) – 
NHS Leeds 

• Chris Butler (Chief Executive) – Leeds Partnerships Foundation Trust 
(LPFT). 

• Sylvia Craven – Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust   
  
Each of the above gave a brief presentation and outlined key issues and 
priorities relevant to the organisations they represented, as follows: 
 
Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation Trust 
 

• Completing the redesign of Older People’s Mental Health Services  

• Improving the Trust’s position with regard to delayed transfer of care 
(between service providers both health and social care) 

• Building on the Trust’s work on patient safety, further improving the quality 
of, and reducing the variation in, services (related to excellence in service 
provision and delivering the aims of “Healthy Ambitions”) 

• Understanding the implications and planning for a downturn in NHS 
finances. 

• Challenging stigma and discrimination often associated and with mental 
health problems and learning disabilities, and promoting social inclusion. 

 
NHS Leeds  
 

• Saving lives and reducing health inequalities 

• Improving health, wellbeing and healthcare 

• Responding to population needs 

• Sustaining performance against access and safety standards 

• Shaping the provider landscape 

• Becoming a world class commissioner 
 
 
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

 

• Key performance targets 
o Improving the excellence of clinical outcomes 
o Improving the management of business 
o Becoming the hospital of choice (for patients and GPs) 

• Service provision in a changing financial environment – focusing on 
improving productivity, efficiency and the quality of services 

• Outcomes of Leeds Strategic Review (focusing on Leeds Health 
Economy) being undertaken by the Strategic Health Authority 

•  Providing care closer to home, including different models of care 
(including services not based at hospitals) 

• Clinical Services Reconfiguration Programme  

• Foundation Trust status process – including the need to act like a 
business when considering changes to services and delivery models 

• Internal and external cultural changes associated with changes in service 
models and delivery 

 
Members received and commented on the presentations and raised a 
number of queries, including the following issues, for which written responses 
would be sought: 
 
NHS Leeds 
 

• To provide a copy of the Young People’s Sexual Health / Teenage 
pregnancy report, presented to NHS Leeds Board – February 2009 
(received) 

• To provide the Board with health data/ information on a geographical 
basis, highlighting particular health issues across the city, particularly in 
deprived areas. 

 
LPFT 
 

• The Trust’s power (and associated processes) for detaining patients 
 
LTHT 
 

• To provide confirmation of any proposed changes to the membership of 
Wharfedale Hospital Consultative Committee, in addition to any proposed 
changes to the operation/ role of Wharfedale Hospital. 

 
The Chair thanked Jill Copeland, Chris Butler and Sylvia Craven for their 
presentations and advised that the Scrutiny Board would like further updates 
(i.e. on a quarterly basis) on the identified key issues and priorities.  The 
Chair also suggested that future updates might usefully include areas where 
the local authority could improve in order to be a more effective partner.    
 
RESOLVED -  That any outstanding issues referred to above be dealt with by 
those officers now identified within the minutes. 
 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

9 Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) - Annual Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report to provide 
Scrutiny Board (Health) with the first Annual Report of Leeds Local 
Involvement Network (LINk).    The Annual Report was tabled for the 
information/comment of the meeting. 
 
It was reported to the Board that the purpose of the item was to: 
 

• Continue to raise awareness of the role and work of Leeds’ LINk (both 
publicly and among members of the Scrutiny Board (Health); 

• Provide members with more detail of what Leeds’ LINk has done during its 
first year, alongside any future plans; and, 

• Provide an opportunity for a general discussion between the Scrutiny 
Board (Health) and representative members of Leeds’ LINk , including any 
work programme issues. 

 
The Chair welcomed the following representatives who were in attendance to 
introduce the report and to respond to Members questions and comments: 
 

• Emily Wragg (LINk Co-ordinator) Shaw Trust (Leeds host organisation) 

• Joy Fisher, Co-Chair, Leeds LINk Interim Steering Group 

• Arthur Giles, Co-Chair, Leeds LINk Interim Steering Group  
 
Joy Fisher addressed the meeting and welcomed the Board’s willingness to 
work with Leeds LINK in the future and pointed out some of the following 
issues that had already been identified by their group: 
 
Key issues raised by the public: 
  

• Better Services for Older People 

• Better Support for People with mental  health problems 

• Improved out hours services  

• Free access to GP (No 0845 numbers) 

• Better transport for patients 

• Better listening and communication. Examples were: 
o GP'S giving patients more time 
o Regular updates for patients on waiting lists 
o Carers being kept informed and involved 

• Better training and support for staff working in care homes 

• More respite care so that Carers can have a break 

• Improved access for people from BME Communities 
  

Issues identified by LINk Members: 
  

• Eccleshill 

• Dentistry 

• Quality controls in NHS facilities and inspection 

Page 6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

• Early discharge and re- admissions- a joined up health and social care 
service 

• Personalisation Agenda 

• Intermediate care 

• Maternity provision 

• Out of hours 

• Strokes 
 
The Chair thanked the representatives of Leeds LINk for attending the 
meeting and requested that the following information be provided to the Board 
as soon as practicable: 
 
- Details of the overall membership of Leeds LINk (i.e. total number of 
 members) 
- Details of the organisations currently represented through membership 
 of Leeds LINk 
- The outcome of the forthcoming elections and membership of the 
 Steering group proper. 
 
RESOLVED -   That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
 
 

10 KPMG Audit Report  
 

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on a 
recent KPMG external audit review of Scrutiny.  The report provided details of 
management’s response to the review recommendations. 
 
Peter Marrington, Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
report and responded to Members’ queries and comments. 
 
In brief, specific reference was made to the following issues:- 
 

• The need for clearer roles for scrutiny with a view to focusing more on 
policy development. 

• The need to produce smaller agenda in order to keep Members at the 
meeting. 

• The need to employ experts in a particular field. 

• That Members concerns should also be put in writing to KPMG on the 
quality of the information in their Review report. 

• The need for Scrutiny Boards to look at how they framework their work 
programmes.   

 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the Review’s recommendations and accompanying management 
 responses be noted and that the above comments be referred to the 
 Scrutiny Advisory Group for consideration. 
 

Page 7



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

11 Determining the Work Programme 2009/2010  
 
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report to aid the 
Scrutiny Board to determine its priorities and work programme for 2009/2010. 
 
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the meeting:- 
 

• Draft Protocol between Scrutiny Board (Health) and NHS Bodies in Leeds 
(Appendix 1 refers) 

• Scrutiny Board (Health) – Health Proposals Working Group terms of 
reference (Appendix 2 refers) 

• Minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on 13th May 2009 and 17th 
June 2009 

• Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules Guidance Note 7 – Inquiry Selection 
Criteria (Appendix 3 refers) 

• Scrutiny Board (Health) - Draft Work Programme 2009/2010 
 
The Board raised and discussed the following issues for possible inclusion in 
the Board’s work programme: 
 

• Renal Unit Provision at Leeds General Infirmary (LGI). 

• Alcohol and its related harm, including the role of the Authority in 
promoting sensible and responsible alcohol consumption, and highlighting 
the associated health implications, especially for those citizens living in 
the most deprived areas of the city. 

• Childhood Obesity and levels of physical activity. 

• Health considerations with the Council’s decision-making processes. 

• Smoking Cessation - to reduce the number of people who smoke. 

• Young People’s sexual health and teenage pregnancies. 

• Focusing on ‘the health of young people’ 

• The role of the Health Proposals Working Group, including arrangements 
for meetings to take place immediately prior to the Scrutiny Board (Health) 
meetings on a quarterly basis 

• Quarterly updates from NHS partners on the key issues and priorities   
identified earlier in the meting (minute 8 refers)  

 
In relation to keeping the Board up to date with proposed services changes, 
associated consultation and implementation (work previously undertaken 
through the Health Proposals Working Group), the Chair proposed that such 
matters be incorporated into the arrangements for quarterly updates, with any 
urgent matters relayed through the Chair in the first instance. 
 
The Chair requested that the Principal Scrutiny Adviser inform the NHS 
bodies of these new arrangement. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted. 

Page 8



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Tuesday, 28th July, 2009 

 

(b) That the Protocol between Scrutiny Board (Health) and NHS Bodies in 
Leeds, as presented (Appendix 1 refers) be agreed. 

(c) That the Principal Scrutiny Adviser, in conjunction with the Chair and 
taking account of the issues raised at the meeting, formulate a more 
detailed  work programme to be presented and considered at the next 
Scrutiny Board meeting.. 

 
12 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

Tuesday, 28th July 2009 at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-meeting at 9.30 a.m.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The meeting concluded at 1.00 p.m.)  
 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date: 28 July 2009 
 
Subject: Renal Services: Provision at Leeds General Infirmary 
 

        
 

 
 
 

1.0 Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The Scrutiny Board was first advised of the need to close the Welcome Wing at Leeds 

General Infirmary (LGI) in February 2006.  The decision to close the Welcome Wing 
included the decision to reconfigure and re-house the services elsewhere in Leeds 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT).  This included the reconfiguration of renal 
services, which saw St. James’ Hospital become the main centre for inpatient renal 
services. 

 
1.2 Since that time, the Scrutiny Board has considered the provision of renal services 

(particular dialysis services) and associated patient transport on several occasions.  
 

2.0 Purpose of this Report 
 
2.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the Scrutiny Board (Health) to consider current 

proposals  from LTHT associated with the provision of renal services (dialysis) across 
the Trust, particularly in terms of provision at LGI. 

  
3.0 Main Issues - Progress Towards Improvement Priorities 
 

3.1 To assist the Scrutiny Board consider the issue in detail, the following information is 
attached to this report: 

• Appendix 1 – a timeline of decisions, actions and considerations associated 
with the provision of renal services by LTHT since February 2006. 

• Appendix 2 – a briefing note from LTHT on the current provision of renal 
services and considerations. 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator:  Steven Courtney 
 

Tel:  247 4707  

 

 

 
 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



• Appendix 3 – a joint report from NHS Leeds and Specialist Commissioning 
Group (SCG) (Yorkshire and Humber) on their role as commissioners of renal 
services and current considerations. 

• Appendix 4 – a submission on behalf of the LGI Kidney Patients Association 
(KPA) 

• Appendix 5 – a submission on behalf of the St. James’ Kidney Patients 
Association (KPA) 

• Appendix 6 – a submission on behalf of the National Kidney Federation 
 

3.2 With the exception of the National Kidney Federation, representatives from the 
organisations outlined in paragraph 3.1 will attend the meeting to address any 
questions identified by the Scrutiny Board. 

 
3.3 A separate report associated with Patient Transport Services is presented elsewhere 

on the agenda. 
 
4.0 Recommendation 
 
4.1 That members of Scrutiny Board consider the information presented in this report 

(and attached appendices) and the details of the discussion at the meeting, and 
determine: 

4.1.1 Any specific action the Board may wish to take; 

4.1.2 Any recommendations the Board may wish to make; 

4.1.3 Determine any matters that require further scrutiny. 

 

5.0 Background Papers  
 

None 

 

Page 12



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS1 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)2 

NOTES 

FEB. 2006  2 Feb. 2006 
 

Wellcome Wing at LGI 
 

The Board was briefed on the main 
themes of the business case 
concerning the future of Wellcome 
Wing. The following points were 
made: 
  

• The Wing housed several 
different services, including the 
Renal Service.  

• Its structure dated from the early 
1960s and the electrical 
infrastructure was in need of 
major remedial work  

• There were serious concerns 
about the presence of asbestos in 
the building.   

• Refurbishment costs of between 
£9m and £17m were anticipated. 

• A timescale of around two years 
was likely for the necessary work. 

 

RESOLVED  
The Board endorsed the 
recommendation that Option 6 
should be progressed, noting that 
further business cases would be 
received in due course for each 
element of the reprovision of 
services within Wellcome Wing 
 

13 Feb. 2006 
 
The Board was advised that LTHT had 
approved in principle the vacation and 
closure of the Welcome Wing at the LGI, 
with all services based there, including 
renal services, being reconfigured and 
rehoused elsewhere in the Trust.  
 
Members were advised that the Trust 
believed that the best option for the 
disposition of renal services was to 
centralise inpatient beds and acute 
dialysis on the St James's site and to 
provide satellite dialysis units on the LGI 
and Seacroft Hospital sites 
 
The Board requested that further 
information on the proposed transfer be 
submitted to the March meeting of the 
Scrutiny Board 

 

 

Option 6 included: 
 

• Ward 32 (inpatients) would 
be reprovided into Lincoln 
Wing at St James adjacent 
to the current renal wards.  
(Capital cost £1.745m for 
the new ward.) 

 

• 18 dialysis stations would 
be created at Seacroft 
hospital with all supporting 
facilities.  
(Capital cost £1.697m for 
the Seacroft dialysis station.) 

 

• A 10 dialysis station unit 
would be created at LGI. 
(Capital cost £0.5m for the 
10 station dialysis unit at 
LGI.) 

 

• Outpatient facilities at LGI 
would remain as would 
vascular access and on site 
renal support to LGI 
patients. 

 
 
 

 

                                            
1
 Formally known as Leeds Primary Care Trust (PCT) 

2
 Formally known as Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing) and Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) 

P
a
g
e
 1

3



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

P
a
g
e
 1

4



OPTIONS PRESENTED TO LTHT BOARD – FEBRUARY 2006 
 

A long list of 6 options for action were initially presented to the LTHT Board (2 February 
2006), as follows: 
 

• Option 1: Do nothing 
(Discounted as the Trust has a responsibility to protect the safety of 
patients and staff and meet health and safety requirements: the criteria 
are therefore not met.) 

 

• Option 2: Upgrade the Wing on a rolling programme, floor by floor, and fully 
refurbish it at a capital cost of approximately £17m. 
(Discounted given the strategic direction of Making Leeds Better and a 
single acute hospital on the St James site as well as the significantly 
greater capital costs required: the criteria are therefore not met.) 

 

• Option 3: Upgrade the Wing, having decanted all occupants on a temporary basis 
and then fully refurbish the Wing at a capital cost of approximately £17m. 
(See option 2) 

 

• Option 4: Upgrade the Wing on a rolling programme, floor by floor to a minimum 
standard to meet immediate health and safety requirements at a capital 
cost of approximately £9m.  There will be 2 different approaches/sub 
options to this decant option. 

 

• Option 5: Upgrade the Wing, having decanted all occupants on a temporary basis 
elsewhere to a minimum standard to meet immediate health and safety 
requirements at a capital cost of approximately £9m. 
(Discounted as this was considered more disruptive than the other 
equivalent (Option 4).) 

 

• Option 6: Reconfigure the services in the Wing and rehouse them elsewhere in the 
Trust at a capital cost of approximately £9m and then close the Wing. 

 

Options four & six were the short listed options as they best met the criteria overall. 
A more detailed summary of these options is attached. 
 

Other issues 
 

The main contentious issue reported was around which option best fitted the needs of 
Renal patients across Leeds, whilst at the same time being consistent with the Trust’s 
overall strategic direction.   
 

It was reported that the majority of current LGI users wanted the service to be retained at 
LGI.  In summary,  the reasons for this were: 
 

• a strong belief in the very high quality of the service currently provided and an 
anxiety that this might not be the case if the service moves 

 

• anxiety about a change of site meaning a change of staff as users appreciate               
continuity of care 

 

• current users are used to and familiar with the service and facilities at LGI 
 

• anxiety about access to the dialysis service as LGI is the closest site for the North 
West and the West of the city and for Bradford patients. 

 

• concern in case there are not appropriate support services at Seacroft and worry in 
case the twilight service is stopped. 

 

Page 15



RENAL SERVICES – POTENTIAL SOLUTIONS RELATING TO  
OPTION 4((A) and (B)) AND OPTION 6 

 
Reported to the LTHT Board – 2 February 2006 

 
 

 
 
 

Refurbishment 
Option 4(a) 

Decants for some 
areas with other 
areas temporarily 

not being 
 re-provided. 

Refurbishment 
Option 4 (b) 

Decants for all areas 
with some areas 
remaining in their 
decanted position. 

Reconfiguration 
(Option 6 ) 

Renal – Ward 32 and 
Ward 50 
This is the most 
complex and 
contentious of all the 
areas within the Wing.   

 

The current Leeds 
Service comprises the 
following: 

 

LGI   

− 23 inpatient beds 

− 24 dialysis stations 
with 4 extra 
available through 
providing a night 
shift. 

− an outpatient 
department. 

− supporting clinical 
and non-clinical 
services. 

SJUH 

− 19 inpatient beds 

− 25 dialysis stations 

− 4 bed HDU 

− 10 bed 
transplantation unit 

− an outpatient 
department 

− clinical and non-
clinical support 
areas 

 

There are also a 
number of satellite 
units under the aegis 
of the Leeds service – 
including a 10 station 
satellite unit on the 
Seacroft site and a 
satellite unit in 
Beeston. 
 

 A number of options 
have been reviewed: 
that of upgrading 
ward 91 and using it 
as a decant facility for 
the renal ward is 
believed to be the 
most effective option.  
Ward 32 would be 
refurbished as part of 
a rolling programme. 
 
Dialysis would have 
to be decanted to 
Seacroft on a 
temporary basis prior 
to ward 50 being 
refurbished. 
 
Capital cost £0.5m 
for the dialysis 
decant.  The ward 
decant costs are 
contained in the costs 
for reproviding ward 
33. 

Under the 
refurbishment option, 
neither ward 50 nor 
ward 32 would remain 
in a decanted position 
after the refurbishment 
but would go back into 
the Wellcome Wing.   
 
Capital cost £0.5m for 
the dialysis decant.  
The ward decant costs 
are contained in the 
costs for reproviding 
ward 33. 

Ward 32 would be 
reprovided into Lincoln 
Wing at St James 
adjacent to the current 
renal wards.  The 
outpatient department at 
St James would move up 
to ward 68 & 69 to allow 
the creation of both a 
ward and an ambulatory 
area within the wing 
specifically for renal 
patients. 
 
18 dialysis stations 
would be created at 
Seacroft hospital with all 
supporting facilities. 
 
A 10 dialysis station unit 
would be created at LGI. 
 
Outpatient facilities at 
LGI would remain as 
would vascular access 
and on site renal support 
to LGI patients. 
 
Capital cost £1.745m 
for the new ward. 
 
Capital cost £1.697m 
for the Seacroft dialysis 
station. 
 
Capital cost £0.5m for 
the 10 station dialysis 
unit at LGI. 
 

Page 16



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS3 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)4 

NOTES 

MAR. 2006   13 Mar. 2006 
 

Proposals on the Reconfiguration of 
Renal Services in Leeds  
 

The Board received an outlined of the 
proposals to reconfigure Renal Services in 
Leeds.  It was reported to the Board that 
the proposals to close the Wellcome Wing 
at the LGI would include an expanded 
satellite service, which would be delivered 
from Seacroft Hospital, in addition to a 
new 10 bed unit at the LGI for patients 
with chronic renal failure. 

 
RESOLVED  
(i) That the Chair writes to the Chief 

Executive of Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Trust to convey the views of the 
Board and recommend that further 
consultation is carried out with patients 
on the reconfiguration proposals in an 
open and transparent manner.  

(ii) That the Trust is asked to provide a 
written response to the Board’s 
recommendation prior to the Board’s 
meeting in April 2006. 

 

 
 

The Board heard from a range 
of stakeholders, including: 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Trust  

• The LGI Kidney Patients 
Association’s  

• UNISON reps. from LTHT 

• RCN reps. 
  
Members raised concerns that 
patients had not been 
reassured at any time 
throughout the process, and 
acknowledged that although 
consultation had occurred in 
2000, on the whole the 
consultation process had been 
unsatisfactory.  
 

 

                                            
3
 Formally known as Leeds Primary Care Trust (PCT) 

4
 Formally known as Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing) and Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) 

P
a
g
e
 1

7



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS3 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)4 

NOTES 

APR. 2006  6 Apr. 2006 
 

Matter arising: Wellcome Wing 
 

The Board was informed that the 
Council’s Scrutiny Board had 
recommended a period of public 
consultation with regard to the 
Trust’s proposals to relocate 
Wellcome Wing. 
 

It was explained that the PCTs 
would lead this process.  The Board 
accepted the Scrutiny Board’s 
recommendation. 

10 Apr. 2006 
 

Matters arising  
 

It was reported that a formal response had 
been received from LTHT in relation to the 
Board’s recommendation for further 
consultation and it was confirmed this had 
been approved at the Trust Board meeting 
held on 6th April 2006. 
 

Members were assured that the Board 
would be informed of any 

developments as they occurred. 
 

 

JUN. 2006  1 Jun. 2006 
 

Wellcome Wing Contingency Plan 
 

The Board received an update on 
the Wellcome Wing Contingency 
Plan.   
 

The Board was briefed on the need 
for urgency and the action being 
taken to communicate with external 
stakeholders and to identify 
temporary accommodation for the 
services that would need to move. 
 

It was agreed that any urgent action 
that became necessary would be 
pursued by way of Chairman’s 
Action as opposed to extra-ordinary 
Board meetings. 

19 Jun. 2006 
 

Presentation from Local Primary Care 
Trusts and Acute Trusts  
 

Under a general item, it was reported that 
consultation on the reconfiguration of 
renal services had commenced and would 
be completed in August 2006.   
 

The Board agreed to continue to keep a 

watching brief on this matter. 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

8



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS3 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)4 

NOTES 

JUL. 2006  6 Jul. 2006 
 

Wellcome Wing Exit Programme 
 

The Board noted the progress 
towards vacating Wellcome Wing by 
the end of October 2006.  
 

The Board was reminded that the 
arrangements were temporary and 
could need to change as a result of 
the consultation process currently in 
progress. 
 

  

AUG. 2006  3 Aug. 2006 
 

Interim Re-provision of Renal 
Services from Wellcome Wing 
 

The Board was presented with an 
interim solution for the reprovision of 
renal services, which highlighted the 
need for urgency as part of the 
process of vacating Wellcome Wing.  
 
The Board was advised that the 
consultation process concerning the 
future of renal services continued 
and was unaffected by the proposal.   
 
The business case received the 
Board’s approval. 

 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

9



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS3 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)4 

NOTES 

SEP. 2006   18 Sep. 2006 
 

Consultation Update: Reconfiguration 
of Renal Services in Leeds  
 

The Board received a verbal update on 
the consultation process from LTHT and 
was advised that the analysis from the 
consultation was due to be submitted to 
the LTHT Board in October 2006.  
  

Members urged the Trust to maximise 
transportation links for patients and 
requested further details about the re-
provision of renal services and the 
evaluation of the consultation process as 
soon as was practicable. 
 

RESOLVED –  
(i) That the information detailed within the 

report be noted; 
(ii) That the Airedale consultation 

document be circulated to Members 
for their information; 

(iii) That an update on the information 
relating to the re-provision of renal 
services in Leeds in addition to the 
evaluation of the results from the 
consultation process be circulated to 
the Board as soon as is practicable; 

(iv) That a letter on behalf of the Board be 
forwarded to the Chief Executive of 
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 
which outlines the Board’s comments 
about need to maximise transportation 
links for patients. 

 

 
 
 
 
At the Scrutiny Board meeting, 
the LGI Kidney Patients 
Association, raised concerns 
over the way in which the 
whole consultation process 
had been conducted. 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS3 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)4 

NOTES 

OCT. 2006  5 Oct. 2006 
 

Update on Wellcome Wing Exit 
Programme 
 

The Board was reminded of the exit 
programme and contingency plans 
associated with the closure of  
Wellcome Wing.    
 

It was confirmed that the Trust 
would be able to re-provide all of 
the services previously housed 
there. 
 

Renal Services Consultation 
 

The Board received  the 
summarised outcome of the formal 
consultation, however a formal 
recommendation was awaited from 
the newly-formed Leeds PCT, which 
had now assumed responsibility for 
the process 
 

The Board accepted the outcome of 
the consultation process and, 
subject to the PCT’s 
recommendation, confirmed its 
support for the proposals being 
taken forward as set out in the 
consultation document. 
 

The Board also agreed that the 
Trust should pursue the concerns 
raised during the consultation 
process. 

23 Oct. 2006 
 

Reconfiguration of Renal Services in 
Leeds  
 

The Board received the Consultation 
Analysis document presented to the LTHT 
Board on 5 October 2006.  
 

RESOLVED –  
(i) That the report be noted. 
(ii) That further consideration be given to 

the Reconfiguration of Renal Services 
in Leeds following consideration of the 
consultation analysis by the Leeds 
Primary Care Trust. 

 
 

PROPOSALS (as presented 
in the consultation document) 
 

• Create a new haemodialysis 
unit at Seacroft Hospital 

 

• Centralise the renal 
inpatient bed base at St 
James’s 

 

• Centralise the peritoneal 
service at St James’s 

 

• Create a 10 station 
dialysis unit at LGI as the 
local facility for dialysis 
patients in the West and 
Northwest of the city and 
for inpatients at the LGI 
suffering acute renal 
failure. 

 
The written consultation 
process received 297 
responses.  The analysis of 
responses showed: 

• 53% (156) supported the 
proposal 

• 21% (61) opposed the 
proposal 

• 26% (80) were neutral 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

1



PROVISION OF RENAL SERVICES BY LTHT – TIMELINE SUMMARY 
 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS3 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)4 

NOTES 

NOV. 2006 16 Nov. 2006 
 

Renal Services 
Consultation 
 

The Board received  the 
summarised outcome of 
the formal consultation 
and resolved to: 

(i) Note the findings of 
the consultation 
analysis;  

(ii) Support the Trust in 
working with partner 
organisations to 
address the specific 
concerns raised in the 
consultation; 

(iii) Strongly recommend 
that LTHT pursue a 
solution for dialysis 
patients from the west 
of the city in the short 
term and have 
discussions on a 
satellite unit at WGH; 

(iv) Consider pursuing 
alternative provision 
should an acceptable 
resolution not be 
reached to 
recommendation (iii) 
above. 

 20 Nov. 2006 
 

Matters arising  
 

It was reported that a further report on the 
Reconfiguration of Renal Services in 
Leeds at the December Board meeting. 
 

 
 
There was broad agreement 
between LTHT and Leeds 
PCT on the substantive issues 
arising from consultation and 
about the way forward. A 
number of key issues were 
identified and both 
organisations met to agree the 
next steps in key areas. These 
are set out in the attached 
document. P

a
g
e
 2

2



KEY ISSUES AGREED BY LEEDS PCT AND LTHT 
 

November 2006 
 
 
In-patient Services 
 

Centralisation of in-patient services at St James’s will proceed. The PCT report into consultation 
did not identify any major difficulties with this part of the proposal. The LTHT clinical 
management team for renal services, the Kidney Patients Associations (LGI and St James’s) 
and the regional planning forum for renal services will address any outstanding matters or new 
issues as they arise. 
 
Haemodialysis services for patients in West/North West Leeds 
 

LTHT will now work towards a permanent dialysis facility at Seacroft, to replace the temporary 
facility which was commissioned at short notice and has a fixed lifespan. 
 

LTHT will also respond to concerns about access to services for people in the West and 
North West of the city and will therefore prioritise work to identify a location then set up a 
project to deliver a 10-station haemodialysis unit at LGI. Three potential locations at LGI are 
under consideration, alongside the LTHT Acute Service Review and continuing estate 
rationalisation. LGI Brotherton Wing offers several potential sites and if agreement on the detail 
can be reached with the PCT and stakeholders a 10-station unit could be established within 
18 months unless there are any delays in plans to vacate space or if there are unforeseen 
difficulties in making it fit for purpose. 
 
Transport 
 

LTHT will shortly be considering bids for a dedicated transport service for renal patients intended 
to resolve many of the difficulties that have arisen historically both at Seacroft and elsewhere in 
the network of units and satellites, although these difficulties are not related to the interim or long 
term changes. A patient representative will be on the tender evaluation panel. The Trust is 
continuing discussions with the local authority, West Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive 
(WYPTE), Metro and commercial providers about transport links and the infrastructure for St 
James’s Hospital, as part of the Making Leeds Better programme.  
 

Page 23



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

Page 24



 

 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

DEC. 2006   18 Dec. 2006 
 

Reconfiguration of Renal Services in 
Leeds  
 

The Board considered a joint report from 
Leeds PCT and Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
NHS Trust (LTHT) following the renal 
services consultation. 

 
Issues discussed included: 

• Timescales associated with the 
provision of a 10-bed unit at the LGI for 
patients with chronic renal failure. 

• Using Wharfedale Hospital to provide a 
satellite unit to serve those in the North 
West of the City. 

• Transport issues. 
 

RESOLVED –  
a) That the report be noted. 
b) That a further report be brought to the 

Board which specifically addressed the 
transport issues raised by renal 
patients. 

 

 
 

At the Scrutiny Board meeting, 
the LGI Kidney Patients 
Association expressed 
concern regarding the 
consultation process and felt 
that it was flawed.  Amongst 
concerns raised was that the 
consultation literature was not 
translated for ethnic groups 
which will have resulted in a 
lack of responses.  It was also 
felt that the consultation 
process should have been 
carried out by an independent 
body rather than the PCT as 
the commissioning body.  
Further issues of concern 
included transport provision, 
access to Seacroft Hospital 
and the affect on the quality of 
life for patients. 

                                            
5
 Formally known as Leeds Primary Care Trust (PCT) 

6
 Formally known as Scrutiny Board (Health and Wellbeing) and Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

JAN. 2007   22 Jan. 2007 
 

Reconfiguration of Renal Services in 
Leeds  - Patient Transport Issues 
 

The Board considered current transport 
provision, alongside additional information 
on the tendering process for transport. 
 

RESOLVED 
 

a) That the report be noted. 
b) That the Board receives a further report 

in March 2007 on the wider issues 
relating to the reconfiguration of renal 
services in Leeds. 

 

 
 

It was reported that the 
tendering exercise was 
currently being evaluated and 
the results could be made 
available to the Board in due 
course.  
 

Following the last meeting of 
the Board where it was 
suggested that a member of 
the Kidney Patients 
Association participate in the 
tendering process, it was 
reported that this had 
happened successfully 
 

APR. 2007   23 Apr. 2007 
 

Provision of Renal Services in Leeds 
 

The Board was informed that that only one 
viable bid had been received for the 
transport tender, however it was 
anticipated that the new arrangements 
would include a number of measures to 
strengthen transport provision, including 
stricter penalties and the provision of a 
dedicated transport contact desk within 
the Yorkshire Ambulance Service. 
 

RESOLVED 
 

That the report be noted 
 

 
 

The Board was advised that 
proposals for the 
establishment of a permanent 
facility at Seacroft Hospital 
and a 10 station satellite unit 
at Leeds General Infirmary 
(LGI) were to be considered 
by the LTHT Management 
Board.  Planned dates for 
completion of the new facilities 
were Autumn 2008 for 
Seacroft and June/July 2008 
for LGI. 

P
a
g
e
 2

6



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

NOV. 2007  29 Nov. 2007 
 

Business Case for creating a 
permanent renal haemodialysis 
unit at Seacroft Hospital  
 

Business Case for creating a 
renal haemodialysis unit at Leeds 
General Infirmary  
 

The LTHT Board considered the two 
business cases in consequence of 
the closure of Wellcome Wing. 
 

The Board was reminded that both 
units had been agreed as part of the 
Wellcome Wing emergency closure 
process and honoured 
commitments made to the KPA at 
an earlier Board meeting. 
 

The Board was advised that the 
precise location of the Unit had been 
discussed with the KPA and other 
users and Ward 46 was their 
preferred location. 
 

Both business cases received 
the Board’s support. 

 14 Nov. 2007 
 

Letter from the Chair of the 
Scrutiny Board to LTHT 
seeking clarification on 
timescales and location of 
the 10 station unit at LGI and 
concerns raised by the KPA. 
 

29 Nov. 2007 
It was reported to the LTHT 
Board that, in relation to the 
LGI scheme: 

• The scheme fits the overall 
direction of the Trust in its 
demonstration of 
responsiveness to patient 
demand for an accessible 
dialysis service on the LGI 
site; 

• £3M had been allocated in 
the capital programme 
across 07/08 and 08/09 for 
renal dialysis schemes.   

• The initial estimate for the 
LGI Unit was £1.7m. 

• There was no additional 
revenue expenditure; 

• The provision would deliver 
dialysis to inpatients at the 
LGI with acute renal failure 
and chronic renal patients 
receiving inpatient care in 
another specialty at the LGI. 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

MAR. 2008   17 Mar. 2008 
 

Matters arising  
 

The Board considered an update on the 
long-term plans for Renal Services in 
Leeds.  This included plans to provide a 
10 station satellite unit at Leeds 
General Infirmary (LGI).  It was reported 
that: 

• The new unit was planned to be sited in 
Ward 46 

• Works would go out for tender on 25 
April 2008 

• It was expected that LTHT Board would 
agree the approved contractor on 26 
June 2008, with a start on site date of 
14 July 2008. 

• The works were anticipated to be 
completed on 12 December 2008, with 
commissioning taking place between 
December 2008 and January 2009.  

 
RESOLVED 
 

a) That the report be noted. 
b) That WYMAS be contacted and 

requested to supply the Board with 
information regarding the transport of 
patients accessing Renal Services. 

 

 
The KPA advised the Scrutiny 
Board that they still had some 
concerns, including: 
 

• Facilities at Seacroft 
Hospital breaking down.  

• Demand for services at St 
James and the ability to 
meet this demand.  

• Transport – although the 
KPA had been actively 
involved in the tendering 
process, only one suitable 
bid had been received.  
Problems had been 
encountered with the 
transport of patients and 
examples of patients not 
being collected for 
treatment and the adverse 
knock on effects were 
given.  

• The timescale to 
implement new provision 
at Leeds General 
Infirmary  

 

P
a
g
e
 2

8



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

JUN. 2008   Work Programme 
 

As part of the new Board’s discussions 
around its work programme, Members 
were advised that the Scrutiny Board 
received regular reports regarding the 
long term plans for renal services in 
Leeds.  
 

Following a monitoring session held on 17 
March 2008, it was highlighted that the 
Leeds Kidney Patients Associations (LGI 
and SJUH) had concerns regarding the 
transport provided by Yorkshire 
Ambulance Service (YAS) under contract 
to LTHT.   
 
RESOLVED 
 

a) To include renal services (particularly 
around transport) as part of the 
Board’s work programme. 

 

 
 

LTHT, YAS and KPA invited to 
attend the Board in September 
2008 to update Members, 
particularly in terms of any on-
going renal transport issues.   

 

JUL. 2008  Award of Contract - Renal 
Dialysis Unit at the Leeds General 
Infirmary  
 

Considered as part of the non-public 
part of the agenda.  
(No public minutes available) 
 

  

P
a
g
e
 2

9



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

SEP. 2008   16 Sep. 2008 
 

Renal Services  
 

The Board heard from NHS Leeds, LTHT, 
YAS and the KPA.  
 

The main issues centred around the 
operation of the renal services transport 
contract between LTHT and YAS. 
 
The KPA provided examples of problems 
experienced transporting patients to and 
from appointments, including late and 
missed collections of patients and patients 
having to travel on long unnecessary 
journeys whilst other patients were 
collected.  The Board was reminded that 
during discussion around the 
reconfiguration of Renal services, the KPA 
had highlighted a number of areas of 
concern, particularly in terms of  transport 
arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

That the report and information presented 
be noted.   
 

That a further report be presented to the 
Board, to include greater detail on current 
performance and trends in performance, 
particularly in the areas discussed at the 
meeting. 
  

 
 

 
 

Following closure of Wellcome 
Wing, the report presented to 
the Board confirmed the 
following service changes: 
 

• February 2008: Inpatient 
ward moved to ward 62 in 
Lincoln Wing at St James’s 
in. 

 

• May 2008: Work started on 
24-station unit at Seacroft 
Hospital. Completion: Jan. 
2009. 

 

• Work due to start shortly at 
LGI to create a 10-station 
chronic unit, with 2 acute 
beds. Completion: Spring 
2009. 

 
 

LTHT and NHS Leeds stated 
their intention to continue to 
work in partnership with both 
the YAS and the Kidney 
Patients Association (KPA) in 
an attempt to resolve areas of 
concern.   

 

P
a
g
e
 3

0



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

OCT. 2008  23 Oct. 2008 
 

Briefing note on renal dialysis 
services at LTHT issued to the 
Chair of the Scrutiny Board 
 

• Confirmed the new renal dialysis 
satellite unit would open on Ward 
44 in December 2009.   

• Described the delay as a result of 
the Children’s Hospital Services 
Reconfiguration. 

• Confirmed the unit will meet the 
commitment made by the Trust to 
re-provide renal dialysis facilities 
at LGI 

• Outlined that a new 6-station 
(previously stated as a 10-station) 
unit, costing over £1m would 
provide services for patients who 
prefer to dialyse in the City 
Centre. 

 

21 Oct. 2008 
 

Renal Services – Transport Update  
 

The Board considered a report from YAS, 
which detailed statistical information in 
relation to transport provision.  This also 
included benchmarking information 
against the Cheshire and Merseyside 
Action Learning Set. 
 

The Board was also informed of 3 main 
areas highlighted at the recent meeting 
between the YAS, LTHT and KPA which 
focussed on planning concerns, 
communication issues and how to reduce 
complaints.  Reasons for missed 
appointments were also highlighted. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

That the report be noted and the Board be 
kept updated on the position regarding 

Renal Services transport. 
 

 
 

 
 

At the Scrutiny Board meeting 
the KPA informed Members of 
outstanding concerns which 
included: 

• Responses to complaints; 

• Times involved in 
transporting patients; and, 

• The future provision of 
services at Leeds General 
Infirmary 

 

JAN. 2009    Report from KPA regarding 
ongoing renal patient 
transport, with particular 
concern regarding the 
Christmas period.  
 

Concern expressed regarding 
the delay to and the long-term 
plans for the LGI renal unit. 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

FEB. 2009 6 Feb. 2009 
 

Renal Services update 
report presented to the 
Trust Board.  The 
report stated: 

• No formal targets for 
delivery of renal 
services – but 
standards and 
markers for good 
practice. 

 

• Sufficient capacity 
within the city to 
provide dialysis to all 
patients who require 
it. 

 

• The longer term 
agreed plan was to: 
o Provide 18 

stations at 
Seacroft 

o Relocate 10 
stations at LGI 
(due to open in 
Dec. 2009) 

 

• Main, continuing 
issue for patients 
revolves around 
transport availability 
and response to 
individual needs. 

 

 6 Feb. 2009 
 

Letters to LTHT and YAS on behalf of the 
Scrutiny Board regarding the concerns of 
the Scrutiny Board regarding the ongoing 
problems associated with renal patient 
transport – particularly in relation to a 
‘number of quite severe difficulties’ over 
the Christmas period, highlighted by the 
KPA.  
 

26 Feb. 2009 
 

Response from LTHT (to letter dated 6 
February 2009) and advised the following: 

• Every effort being made to improve the 
renal patient experience in respect of 
transport and a Renal Patient Transport 
Steering Group had recently been 
established 

• Over the Christmas period, Renal Units 
closed on different days of the week 
and inconsistent information was given 
YAS. 

• For future Christmas periods, there will 
be a standard approach from all the 
Renal Units over communications with 
YAS 

• Other work being undertaken around: 
o Patient journey experience 
o Patient transport – eligibility criteria 
o Patient awareness, including patient 

responsibilities around transport 
o Communication to improve aborted 

inward journeys 
 

6 Feb. 2009 
 

Letter sent to KPA advising of 
the approach to seek 
information from LTHT and 
YAS. 
 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

2



 

ACTIVITY: 
MONTH 

NHS LEEDS5 
LEEDS TEACHING HOSP. 

TRUST 
SCRUTINY BOARD (HEALTH)6 

NOTES 

MAR. 2009   10 Mar. 2009 
 

Response from YAS (to letter dated 6 
February 2009) providing details of the 
service review undertaken (covering the 
Christmas period).  YAS recognised that 
some patients experienced a disrupted 
service with their transport over the 
Christmas holiday period. Some of the 
outcomes of the review included: 

• No Patient failed to be transported as a 
result of YAS failings. 

• 54 patients (w/c 22/12/08) and 29 
patients  (w/c 29/12/08  experienced 
delays as a result of transport:  

• 27 patients had to reduce dialysis (as 
confirmed by LTHT)  

There were 100 ‘abortive’ journeys over 
the period 

 

JUL. 2009  30 Jul. 2009 
 

Report to Trust Board.  Content 
TBC. 

28 Jul. 2009 
 

Consideration of current proposals 
regarding delivery of renal services at LGI 
 

Update on provision of renal patient 
transport 
 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



P
a
g
e
 3

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



APPENDIX 2 
 

LEEDS TEACHING HOSPITALS NHS TRUST 
 

PROVISION OF RENAL DIALYSIS ACROSS THE TRUST 
 

BRIEFING ON THE FACTS 
 

1. BACKGROUND 
During public consultation on the closure of the Wellcome Wing in 2006 because of its 
very poor infrastructure, the Trust committed to building a dialysis unit on the LGI site 
although at the time the particular location could not be identified.  Subsequently a 
location was identified and the Trust agreed to move ahead.  The location was changed 
to ward 44 in 2008 and the Trust again gave a commitment to delivery.  However, 
following a detailed review of the demands on the Trust’s capital programme, and the 
current clinical priorities and patient safety issues that have emerged, the Trust is 
reviewing this decision and difficult choices will have to be made in the light of both the 
promise that has been made to create the dialysis unit whilst knowing that there is 
enough clinical capacity for dialysis in the Trust without building any more.   
 

2. DIALYSIS 
 There are 44 dialysis stations on the Seacroft site and 27 on the St James’s site.  
Additionally many of the wards and intensive care units have dialysis points within the 
wards on both the LGI and SJUH sites so that those patients who are acutely ill and are 
either, having dialysis because of their ongoing kidney failure, or because they have 
kidney failure as a consequence of another condition, can have the necessary treatment. 
 
The St James’s dialysis unit generally deals with the sickest patients.  The Seacroft R & 
S ward dialysis unit is the intermediate unit and the Seacroft B ward satellite dialysis unit 
is the unit least ill patients attend. There are also a number of other satellite units in other 
parts of West Yorkshire. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

St James’s dialysis unit 
27 stations 

(17 adult stations 
5 Hep B stations 

5 paediatric stations) 

 

Proposed KPA position 
based on previous 

commitment by Trust 

Current position as at 

June 2009 

Seacroft B ward  
dialysis unit 

10 stations 

LGI 

10 stations 

Seacroft R & S ward 
dialysis unit 

34 stations 

St James’s dialysis unit 
27 stations 

(17 adult stations 
5 Hep B stations 

5 paediatric stations) 

 

Seacroft R & S ward 
dialysis unit 
24 stations 
10 unused 

Seacroft B ward  
dialysis unit 

10 stations 

Most ill patients 

Intermediate care 
patients 

Least ill patients 

Page 35



 
 

It is clear from the above distribution that when all the stations are fully staffed, there is 
already enough capacity in the Trust for all the dialysis patients who need it (with some 
left over).  Most of the stations are currently run for two sessions a day. More capacity 
can be created by instituting ‘twilight’ shifts which are already common in other parts of 
the country. These tend to benefit patients who are still working full time despite having 
renal failure. Introducing twilight shifts on existing machines would provide extra capacity 
without the need to fund a new capital development. 
 
The Trust therefore has enough clinical capacity already to meet the clinical need: if we 
were to create 10 stations at LGI we would have 10 stations at Seacroft that would be 
empty. 

 
3. CAPITAL 

 The position with capital is that the Trust is allowed - and can only afford - a certain 
amount of capital spend each year.  There are always many more things that are either 
required or desired from this amount of money each year and decisions have to be made 
on an annual basis about the prioritisation of this spend. When faced with difficult choices 
the need to provide safe and effective clinical care to all patients has to be the deciding 
factor. 

 
The capital spend is not only for buildings but is also for medical and scientific equipment 
and for information technology.   
 
We need to spend the capital for buildings both on maintaining the infrastructure of the 
Trust buildings and for developing accommodation for new services or improving the 
accommodation from a patient’s point of view.   
 
Similarly, we have to replace old items of medical equipment and purchase new ones to 
meet the opportunities of developing technologies.   
 
The Trust commits a proportion of the overall capital available for replacement of 
infrastructure or equipment each year, in order to ensure that we are providing a safe 
environment and that relevant Health and Safety  issues are being addressed. 
 
This year, 09/10, we have £58.5m to spend on capital.  Of this, at the start of the year, 
the following was already committed either because schemes had already started, or 
because the Trust has agreed to spend a certain amount on infrastructure in order to 
maintain the upkeep of buildings, or because external organisations had provided the 
money for specific projects.  
 
£13m on buildings infrastructure 
£6.m on medical and scientific equipment 
£2.5m on information technology 
£33m on clinically related schemes 

 
This left approximately £3.5m to be used for the highest clinical priorities.  In making 
decisions about allocation of capital, the Trust Board will always put clinical need and 
patient safety at the heart of decision making. Value for money and cost effectiveness 
also have to be considered. 

 
29 June 2009 

 

Page 36



APPENDIX 3 
 

COMMISSIONERS REPORT  
PROVISION OF RENAL DIALYSIS AT LEEDS GENERAL INFIRMARY 

 
 

The commissioning of NHS Renal Services across Yorkshire & the Humber is the 
responsibility of the Yorkshire & the Humber Specialised Commissioning Group. 
 

1. Specialised Services 
 
Introduction 
 
Specialised services are those services which are not provided in every hospital 
(generally, they are provided in less than 50 hospitals nationally), because of: 
 

o The small number of patients suffering from the condition and requiring 
treatment. 

o The need for expert staff. 
o The provision of expensive equipment. 
o Frequently, but not always, the provision of these services will also be very 

expensive. 
 

A specialised service is defined as a service with a planning population of more than 
one million people.   
 
Specialised Services National Definitions Set 
 
These describe specialised services in more detail.  There are 35 individual definitions, 
including such services as bone marrow transplantation, rehabilitation services for brain 
injury and complex disability, specialised burn care services, specialised heart surgery, 
spinal cord injury and renal services.   
 
The Carter Review (2006) 
 
The purpose of this review, which was requested by the Department of Health, was to 
propose improvements in planning and providing specialised services in England.   
Within this review, Professor Sir David Carter, (former Chief Medical Officer for 
Scotland), acknowledged that patients requiring specialised services often have a long-
standing relationship with the specialist centre providing their care, and have a high 
level of knowledge about their condition.   
 
Professor Carter also recognised the significant financial risk of an individual Primary 
Care Trust having to fund expensive, unpredictable activity.  This risk can be reduced 
by Primary Care Trusts grouping together to collectively commission specialised 
services and share the financial risk.  Large-scale capital investment is often necessary, 
and the availability of other key specialities, (for example intensive care, 24-hour 
operating theatres and sophisticated x-ray services), is also critically important.   
 
 
 
 

Page 37



APPENDIX 3 
 

Specialised Commissioning Groups (SCGs) 
 
An agreed recommendation of the Carter Review was that future responsibility for 
commissioning specialised services would rest with Specialised Commissioning 
Groups, which would share the same boundaries as the relevant Strategic Health 
Authority; locally this is, of course, Yorkshire & the Humber.  The Yorkshire & the 
Humber Specialised Commissioning Group (SCG) is a permanent Joint Committee of, 
and acts on behalf of, all the Primary Care Trusts in the Yorkshire & the Humber 
Strategic Health Authority area, of which there are 14. 
   
The underlying aims of the new commissioning arrangements for specialised services 
are to: ensure fair access to clinically effective, high quality, cost effective specialised 
services across the region; to ensure that scarce skills are used effectively; and to 
prevent wasteful and potentially unsafe duplication of these services.   
 
Specialised Commissioning Groups are required to pay particular attention to areas 
where significant increases in demand are likely to lead to pressures on services, e.g., 
renal replacement therapy (dialysis and transplantation).   
 
Specialised Renal Services (Adult) – Definition No. 11 
 
The purpose of a definition is to identify the activity that should be regarded as 
specialised, and therefore, within the remit of the Specialised commissioning Group.  
Each definition is drawn up by a process involving clinical staff, managers, 
commissioners and patient groups, and then endorsed by relevant national 
organisations.  Definition No. 11 has been endorsed by the British Renal Society, the 
Kidney Alliance and the Renal Association.   
 
Definition Introduction 
 
The National Service Framework for Renal Disease was published in January 2004 
(Part I) and February 2005 (Part II), and covers all aspects of renal care, including early 
renal disease, chronic kidney disease (previously known as chronic renal failure), 
dialysis, transplantation, acute kidney injury (previously called acute renal failure) and 
appropriate palliative care for patients in whom dialysis is not, or is no longer, 
appropriate.   
 
Renal services for patients with moderate to severe chronic kidney disease are largely 
delivered by renal specialists working in the specialist renal centre itself and on an out-
reach basis to surrounding local hospitals.  With the growing occurrence of renal 
disease in the elderly population, there is an increasing need to provide care for pre-
dialysis patients and low clearance renal patients receiving palliative care as close to 
home as possible; this can be done by increasing local hospital renal care provision and 
improving community and primary care services.   
 
Specialist renal centres also treat patients with acute kidney injury.   
 
Kidney transplantation services are provided in 20 of the 50 or so renal centres across 
the country; in Yorkshire and the Humber, they are provided in Leeds and Sheffield.    
Specialist renal centre services include: 
 

Page 38



APPENDIX 3 
 

ü Renal out-patient clinics on site and as an outreach service to local hospitals. 
ü Haemodialysis services on site. 
ü Satellite haemodialysis services. 
ü Support to patients on peritoneal dialysis and home dialysis. 
ü Renal anaemia management and specialist renal dietetic support. 
ü Conservative management programmes for established renal failure. 
ü Out-patient and in-patient services for acute kidney injury. 
ü Transplantation services. 
 

Renal services require support from a variety of other services.  Specialist surgery is 
necessary for haemodialysis vascular access and peritoneal dialysis catheter insertion 
and removal.  Specialist radiology support is required for monitoring and intervention for 
haemodialysis vascular access, renal biopsy support and renal imaging and 
intervention. 
 
Specialised Renal Activity 
 
The renal patient pathway follows the early detection and treatment of chronic kidney 
disease, pre-dialysis, dialysis, transplantation, acute kidney injury and appropriate 
palliative care for patients in whom dialysis is not, or is no longer, appropriate.  The 
early stages and treatment of chronic kidney disease are generally carried out in 
primary care in consultation, where appropriate, with a specialist renal centre.  If the 
patient’s kidney function worsens they are usually transferred to the care of a 
specialised renal centre for further care and, perhaps, dialysis and/or transplantation.   
 
For patients who do not enter a dialysis programme, but instead receive conservative 
management (also known as palliative care), they will receive their care supervised by a 
specialised centre; increasingly, they will receive as much of their care as possible close 
to home, from their local hospital, community and primary care services.   
 

2. Clinical Networks 
 
Introduction 
 
In his review, Professor Carter reported a clear need for Specialised Commissioning 
Groups to forge strong links with clinical networks, to ensure that commissioning and 
investment plans support the delivery of integrated care.  GP practice and Primary Care 
Trust commissioning plans should be integrated with those relating to specialised 
services, to ensure continuity of patient care and appropriate use of resources. 
 
The Yorkshire & the Humber Renal Network 
 
As in many other areas of the country, new renal network arrangements have been 
established for Yorkshire & the Humber.  These arrangements comprise a single Renal 
Strategy Group for the whole of the Yorkshire & the Humber region, supported by three 
Local Implementation Groups, which reflect and support local commissioning, provider 
and patient population groups and relationships.  Every hospital providing renal services 
in the region has senior clinical and managerial representation on the Renal Strategy 
Group.  All commissioning organisations (including the SCG) across the region are 
represented at senior level.  There is also a patient representative. 
 

Page 39



APPENDIX 3 
 

3. Renal Haemodialysis Provision at Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
Trust 

 
Background 
 
Both the Yorkshire & the Humber SCG and NHS Leeds, (on whose behalf the SCG 
commissions renal services from the Leeds Trust), are aware that pre-existing renal 
facilities (both in-patient and dialysis) at Leeds General Infirmary (LGI) were assessed 
almost three years ago as unsafe under a number of mandated regulations.  As a result, 
in-patient services were transferred to St. James’s Hospital (SJH) – now the main renal 
centre for Leeds – and dialysis provision was temporarily transferred to Seacroft – 
where there are now permanent facilities. 
 
A consultation with patients and an option appraisal were undertaken in February 2006 
to agree the revised proposal.  Commissioners are also aware that, as part of the 
consultation process that took place at that time, it had been agreed that, although in-
patient facilities would remain permanently on the SJH site, some, but not all, dialysis 
provision would be returned to LGI – 10 stations, accommodating up to 40 patients.  
 
Current Position 
 
Renal dialysis is currently provided at four locations within the Leeds boundary, and the 
current, shared view of both the SCG, NHS Leeds and the Hospitals Trust, is that this 
will deliver sufficient immediate, medium and long term capacity, particularly given the 
joint strategy to repatriate those clinically suitable patients currently receiving their care 
in Leeds, to planned facilities closer to home, for example, in Huddersfield and 
Wakefield.   
 
A recent patient audit has indicated that as few as 11 patients, out of a total of over 85, 
currently receiving dialysis at Seacroft, would prefer to re-locate to Leeds General 
Infirmary. 
 
The SCG and NHS Leeds further understand that the capital cost of the planned move 
to the Trust would be in the region of £1.4m, which would, in this case, represent very 
poor value for money.  Such an investment would also leave suitable existing facilities at 
Seacroft un-utilised.   
 
Patient Transport 
 
The issue of patient transport has also been raised.  However, although it has been 
acknowledged that there are still a small number of delays, there has been a significant 
improvement in services and performance, which has, in fact, been commended by the 
National Clinical Director for Renal Services.  A separate report, prepared by the 
ambulance service, will be presented to members in conjunction with this report. 
 

4. Summary 
 
It is the shared and agreed view of the Yorkshire & the Humber Specialised 
Commissioning Group, and NHS Leeds, that a decision by the Leeds Teaching 
Hospitals Trust not to invest in the re-provision renal dialysis facilities at the Leeds 
General Infirmary would be the right decision at this time.  Such a decision would also 

Page 40



APPENDIX 3 
 

be supported by the majority of members of the Yorkshire & the Humber Renal Strategy 
Group. This support is based on the position outlined above, which does not 
demonstrate a robust case for change in respect of overall cost benefit at this time. 
 
The SCG and NHS Leeds remain committed to continuously reviewing capacity, 
demand and future plans for investment in all types of renal replacement therapy, (not 
just haemodialysis) which may lead to future changes following further consultation.  
 
There does remain, however, an issue for patients living in North West Leeds.  A recent 
needs analysis revealed a small number of patients in this part of the city and there have 
been no reported issues to date regarding access to dialysis.  There are insufficient 
numbers to consider opening additional units, however if access does become an issue 
NHS Leeds working with SCG will need to explore access to units in neighbouring 
areas. 
 
 
 
Jackie Parr      Paula Dearing 
Senior Commissioning Manager   Head of Development & Commissioning 

Long Term Conditions & Urgent Care 
Yorkshire & the Humber SCG   NHS Leeds 
 
16th July 2009 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4 
 

 1 

Submission to Leeds City Council Scrutiny Board by  
LGI Kidney Patients Association (KPA) 

 
 
1. On 2 June 2009 following a number of questions raised by the KPA to the Trust 

regarding the lack of progress towards establishing the much promised and 
awaited LGI dialysis unit Lilian Black was informed by senior staff of the Leeds 
NHS Trust that the unit would not now go ahead. 

 
2. To date, despite a variety of requests for information regarding the basis for such a 

decision we have received what we consider to be a totally inadequate response 
from the Trust – they have betrayed their promises to the chronically sick renal 
patients of Leeds and beyond. We have spent hours planning the unit with the 
Trust to the point of working with architects on detailed plans – the cost of the 
plans must be enormous. We have been engaged with the Trust over two years on 
this process. 

 
3. After closing Wellcome Wing at the LGI, the cost of creating the temporary unit at 

Seacroft to be followed by closing this down and building another unit next door, to 
now be faced by having to replace the water treatment plant at St James Hospital 
and needing to find another place to dialyse patients whilst this work goes on 
beggars belief. The argument about having to make capital funding choices pales 
into significance against this mismanagement and waste of public money. 

 
4. Everything we said when Wellcome Wing was to be closed has come true. 

Chronically sick patients living out of area and in parts of Leeds not near to 
Seacroft and within easy reach of a dialysis unit continue to be condemned to what 
is in effect an 7/8 hour day three times a week to receive their life saving treatment. 

 
5. If the Trust approved the unit previously then what has changed now to say that 

there is no clinical need?  
 
6. What is the meaning of the phrase ‘clinical need’ used by the senior management 

of the Trust? The only factor mentioned is the number of stations and even their 
location is secondary. Our contention is that location is fundamental both to 
patients within the boundary of the city of Leeds and beyond. Travel time to and 
from dialysis is fundamental to their quality of life. 

 
7.  Renal clinical guidelines for haemodialysis state that, 

 
“Except in remote geographical areas the travel time to a haemodialysis 
facility should be less than 30 minutes or a haemodialysis facility should be 
located with 25 miles of the patients’ home. In inner city areas travel times 
over short distances may exceed 30minutes at peak traffic flow periods during 
the day. Haemodialysis patients who require transport should be collected 
from home within 30 minutes of the allotted time and be collected to return 
home within 30 minutes of finishing dialysis.”  (Renal Association Clinical 
Practice Guidelines for Haemodialysis 2007) 
 

Page 43



APPENDIX 4 
 

 2 

8. The paper produced by the Trust makes absolutely no reference to patients who 
are travelling to Seacroft from Halifax, Pontefract, Huddersfield and from the 
North/North West of the City. It makes no reference to patients waiting to go onto 
dialysis, it makes no reference to the projected growth projections for the increased 
need for dialysis, nor the fact that there will be a large population growth in 
Pakistani and Bangladeshi communities who have a five times higher propensity 
for renal failure than other members of the population. There is no reference to the 
separation from other major clinical centres such as the LGI which compounds the 
challenge these patients face with the ordeal sometimes of travel into Leeds centre 
for a morning clinic followed by the journey to Seacroft and then home.  

 
9. So what is the Trust’s definition of clinical need? Over what period is ‘clinical need’ 

assumed to be met? These capital spending decisions are clearly annual yet any 
responsible measure of ‘clinical need’ would have to be set within at least a 
medium time period of say three to five years. Where is their evidence that the 
current disposition and number of stations meets the needs of this part of the city 
region over such a period? We have evidence that there is a clinical short-fall 
already which can only get worse. We have not been presented with any evidence 
that this has been the subject of strategic planning or consultation. 

 
10. What value can the Scrutiny Board or any of us place on the word of the Trust? 

The commitment made to open a ten station facility at the LGI was a critically 
important part of us all being reassured that the decision to close the Wellcome 
Wing was going to be mitigated by the restoration of a dialysis facility for out-
patients in the LGI. Moreover we were encouraged to become actively involved in 
the decision process and help determine the precise location etc. It is difficult to 
see how we can trust the Trust again. 

 
11. It is true that transport arrangements have been un-satisfactory but on this 

occasion that is a secondary issue. It is not acceptable for the Trust to deflect the 
argument in that direction. This is the sole responsibility of the management of the 
Trust and its Board. 

 
12. The conclusion of the LGI KPA is that the need for the unit at the LGI has not 

changed and if anything, our experience since the closure of the Wellcome Wing 
proves even more than ever that we need a central location at the LGI. There are 
serious problems in Leeds for renal patients. Having 10 ‘spare’ machines at 
Seacroft is not helpful in meeting the medium to long term needs of these patients. 

 
 

Lilian Black 
LGI Kidney Patients Association  

 

Page 44



APPENDIX 5 
 

 

 
Patrons: Lord Harewood, Christine Talbot 

Chair: Lesley Britton 10 Adams Grove, Barwick rd, Leeds, LS15 8TT ‘Phone 0113 264 5373 
Secretary: Paul Taylor, 8 Moorcroft Ave, Golcar, Huddersfield, HD7 4QH ‘Phone 01484 640401 

Treasurer: Ian Cundell, 24 Greystones Close, Aberford, Leeds. LS25 3AR  ‘Phone 0113 2813478 

St. James’s Kidney Patients Association 
Registered Charity Number 700981 

An Association run by Patients for 
Patients  

 

Please reply to: The Secretary, St James KPA, FREEPOST NAT18200, Huddersfield, HD7 4LP 

Tel:01484 640401  e-mail: paul@pgt67.eclipse.co.uk 
 

Steven Courtney 
Principal Scrutiny Adviser 
1st Floor, West 
Civic Hall 
Leeds 
LS1 1UR 
 

20/07/2009 
 

Dear Steven 
 
The committee of the above association would like it to be known that we are in 
full support of our fellow KPA at the LGI where the promised building of a new 
Haemodialysis unit is concerned. 
 
We appreciate that difficult decisions have to be made and that there is only so 
much funding available for capital investment. However to have gone as far as 
they have with the promise of the LGI dialysis unit, have the plans developed and 
raise everyones hopes and expectations only to have them quashed is 
incomprehensible to say the least.   
 
The lives of renal patients from all over West Yorkshire depend on this unit being 
built.  Following recent communication from the Trust, Lilian Black of the LGI 
KPA informed us that the Trust stipulates there is enough capacity.  If that is the 
case then why are some patients dialysing twice weekly when they require 
dialysis three times a week? Why are patients from Halifax, Wakefield and 
Huddersfield travelling to Seacroft enduring countless hours sitting in traffic, often 
have their treatment cut short and then enduring the same journey home?  It is 
comparable to an 8 hour day 3 times a week just to stay alive – where is the 
quality of life in that?  
 
To say that there is enough capacity within the Trust when there are over 30 
known patients, of a cohort of over 400, (IPST mins, Jan 09) who in the near 
future will more than likely require Renal Replacement Therapy is ludicrous.  
Where will these patients dialyse if the satellites are full? 

Page 45



APPENDIX 5 

 

 

 
Patrons: Lord Harewood, Christine Talbot 

Chair: Lesley Britton 10 Adams Grove, Barwick rd, Leeds, LS15 8TT ‘Phone 0113 264 5373 
Secretary: Paul Taylor, 8 Moorcroft Ave, Golcar, Huddersfield, HD7 4QH ‘Phone 01484 640401 

Treasurer: Ian Cundell, 24 Greystones Close, Aberford, Leeds. LS25 3AR  ‘Phone 0113 2813478 

St. James’s Kidney Patients Association 
Registered Charity Number 700981 

An Association run by Patients for 
Patients  

 

Cont… 
 
The Trust argues that the need to spend the funds allocated to this unit on a new 
water treatment plant at the St James’s site.  Whilst we agree that this is an 
urgent case, the Trust has known about it for sometime.  However they chose not 
to use the temporary infrastructure already in place when T&U was vacated 
some 6 months ago.  We are sure utilising this facility would have saved money if 
they had acted quickly enough. 
 
Both of these projects are desperately required for the renal patients of West 
Yorkshire and to give the go ahead of one at the expense of the other is wholly 
unacceptable. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Paul Taylor 
On behalf of St James’s KPA 
 
Cc Maggie Boyle, Chief Executive, LTHT 
 Cllr Mark Dobson, Chair Leeds Health Scrutiny Board 
 

Page 46



APPENDIX 6 
 

Renal Services : A submission on behalf of the National Kidney Federation 
 
I apologise for not being able to be present at the Scrutiny Board meeting on 28 July 2009. I 
hope this written submission will be helpful to members in their deliberations on this agenda 
item. 
 
I am sure representatives of the Leeds General Infirmary and St. James’s kidney patients’ 
associations will make their own case for the respective capital works programmes. 
 
They have much more detailed knowledge than I do, and it is, of course, their members who 
are directly affected by the decisions taken.  
 
What I shall endeavour to do in this report is to provide an external and neutral renal patient 
view of each proposal. 
 
Can I begin by stating that I recognise fully the very real financial pressures facing the health 
service, especially at the present time, the many competing demands on available monies, 
and the need to ensure the most effective use of scarce resources. 
 
I appreciate also that changing financial circumstances may necessitate a review of 
decisions previously agreed, but any such review should, in my view, take into account 
primarily whether the clinical circumstances that led to the original decision have changed 
any way. 
 
I do not intend to repeat here the background history to these matters, but will set out, as I 
see it, the respective need for both two schemes. 
 
Leeds General Infirmary Scheme. 
 
It seems to me that there are at least three reasons why this scheme should go ahead. 
 

(a) It would make more efficient use of the nursing staff already working at the LGI site 
who are providing specialist renal support to patients who have been admitted for 
other conditions. 

 

(b) A number of patients who are dialysing at the Seacroft unit and who live closer to the 
LGI site would have a shorter journey, and less time spent in travelling to and from 
their thrice weekly sessions, with the transport and environmental costs benefits that 
would be achieved 

 

(c) Enabling the patients identified at (b) above to dialyse at the LGI would also be in  line 
with best practice of ensuring that patients who are clinically suitable undergo their 
dialysis as close to home as possible. 

 
The one caveat I would add about b). and c). above is that I have no way of knowing whether 
the number of patients to whom those points apply is greater than the number for whom 
Seacroft is the nearer unit. 
 
 
 

Page 47



APPENDIX 6 
 

St. James’s Hospital Scheme. 
 
Quite by coincidence, I can see three reasons also for supporting this scheme. 
 

(a) A continuous supply of specially treated water is essential to the haemodialysis 
process. 

 

(b) Any temporary disruption to the supply itself, and/or to the required standards of purity 
owing to water treatment plant breakdown, can lead to delays in patients accessing 
their treatment, with a knock on effect for patients dialysing later on the same day, 
which can, in turn, cause transport difficulties for patients, and, in extremis, a 
shortening of their prescribed treatment session. 

 

If such problems occur continually, the overall cost of putting in place essential repairs 
would need to be weighed against the cost of a full replacement service. 
 

(c) Longer term failure of the water treatment plant would lead to patients having to be 
transferred to other units to undergo their treatment, with all the potential difficulties 
that would create in terms of additional travel costs and journey times.  

 
The possibility of patients having their dialysis delayed, or having to dialyse at different times 
of day or days of the week at a different unit to the norm could well arise, which in turn would 
impact on other aspects of their lives. Such effects would not necessarily be ones of ‘minor’ 
social inconvenience.  
 
For example, a patient who is a resident in a care home could miss a meal that is provided at 
a set time, or an elderly person living alone might not arrive home until after dark, rather than 
in daylight hours. 
 
The disruptive effect on staff also should not be forgotten. 
 
Haemodialysis Capacity 
 
I mention this issue only because I know it is referred to elsewhere in the papers that  
members have received for this agenda item. 
 
The national body that sets standards for renal care in the UK, the Renal Association, states 
unequivocally that failure to provide thrice weekly dialysis for patients with a clinical need for 
it, on financial grounds alone, is totally unacceptable. 
 
There may, of course, be reasons other than lack of capacity that prevent such frequency of 
treatment being available at any given time; for example, relating to staff recruitment, 
retention and absence levels. 
 
Forecasting future treatment demand can never be an exact science. However, the modelling 
tool used in the region in recent years has proved to be remarkably accurate. 
 
It is anticipated nationally that numbers of patients requiring all forms of renal replacement 
therapy will continue to grow for the foreseeable future, with the greatest demand coming in 
the hospital based haemodialysis sector, (forecast to rise by up to 8% per annum). 
 

Page 48



APPENDIX 6 
 

Not all patients are suitable for alternative forms of treatment, (home haemodialysis, 
peritoneal dialysis and transplantation). Even if the numbers of patients on such therapies 
were to increase significantly, there would be a proportionate increase over time in the 
number of them needing hospital based haemodialysis because of their transplants failing, 
home patients becoming too old or frail to dialyse themselves, or being in need of ‘respite 
care’ ‘should their home carers become unwell. 
 
On current evidence from elsewhere, there is a timescale of anything up to 2 years between 
the need for additional facilities being identified and the actual opening of the new unit. 
 
In certain circumstances, there could be a need to bring what is currently deemed as ‘spare’ 
capacity into use quickly.  
 
Examples might include the need to transfer patients from an existing unit in the event of a 
serious incident, (e.g. water treatment plant failure or major fire), or, should a ‘flu pandemic 
arise, there being a need to accept patients for treatment in Leeds from the wider region 
owing to staff absences at units where patients would dialyse usually, (although I accept this 
could apply equally in respect of the effect on units in Leeds). 
 
Finally, and importantly, there is much evidence now to suggest that patient outcomes, both 
clinically and in terms of overall quality of life, are enhanced by more frequent and longer 
hours sessions of dialysis. Inevitably, this improvement in patient care will have implications 
for the number of hospital based dialysis facilities required. 
 
Conclusion  
 
On the basis of the above, it is my view that there is a need for both the new LGI unit and the 
replacement water treatment plant at the St. James’s site to be priorities for capital 
investment by the Trust board. 
 
Dennis Crane, MBE, North Region Advocacy Officer, National Kidney Federation. 
 
20 July 2009 
 
Author’s Note. 
 

Dennis Crane has been an identified renal patient for more than 40 years. He has first hand 
experience of all forms of renal replacement therapy; home and hospital based 
haemodialysis, peritoneal dialysis, and failed and successful transplantation.  
 

A founder member of the North West Region Kidney Patients’ Association in 1983, he 
worked on a voluntary basis with and on behalf of patients both regionally and nationally on a 
range of renal and transplant related issues for more than 20 years.  
 

He was awarded the MBE for his services to people with renal disease in 2002, and was 
appointed to his present part time salaried post in April 2004.  Prior to that, he worked for 
almost 36 years in the Education Department of Manchester City Council, retiring from his 
post as Head of School Governor Support and Training in September 2002. 
 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date: 28 July 2009 
 
Subject: Renal Services: Patient Transport Service 
 

        
 

 
 
 

1.0 Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The Scrutiny Board was first advised of the need to close the Welcome Wing at Leeds 

General Infirmary (LGI) in February 2006.  The decision to close the Welcome Wing 
included the decision to reconfigure and re-house the services elsewhere in Leeds 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT).  This included the reconfiguration of renal 
services, which saw St. James’ Hospital become the main centre for inpatient renal 
services. 

 
1.2 Since that time, the Scrutiny Board has considered the provision of renal services 

(particular dialysis services) and associated patient transport on several occasions.  
 

2.0 Purpose of this Report 
 
2.1 The purpose of the report is to present the Scrutiny Board (Health) with a  report from 

Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS) on the current performance of its Patient 
Transport Service for renal patients. 

  
3.0 Main Issues - Progress Towards Improvement Priorities 
 

3.1 A report from Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS) on the current performance of its 
Patient Transport Service for renal patients is attached (Appendix 1 – to follow). A 
representative from YAS will attend the meeting to address any questions identified 
by the Scrutiny Board. 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator:  Steven Courtney 
 

Tel:  247 4707  

 

 

 
 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 51



3.2 A separate report associated with the provision of renal services (dialysis), particularly 
in terms of provision at Leeds General Infirmary, is presented elsewhere on the 
agenda. 

 
4.0 Recommendation 
 
4.1 That members of Scrutiny Board consider the information presented in report from 

YAS and the details of the discussion at the meeting and determine: 

4.1.1 Any specific action the Board may wish to take; 

4.1.2 Any recommendations the Board may wish to make; 

4.1.3 Determine any matters that require further scrutiny. 

 

5.0 Background Papers  
 

None 

 

Page 52



 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date: 28 July 2009 
 
Subject: Joint Performance Report: Quarter 4 – 2008/09  
 

        
 

 
 
 

1.0 Executive Summary 
 
1.1 During the previous municipal year (2008/09), the Scrutiny Board (Health) received 

regular performance reports relating to issues within the Board’s remit, from both NHS 
Leeds and Leeds City Council.  In January 2009 it was agreed to adopt a more 
collaborative approach and provide a single, joint performance report on a quarterly 
basis. 

 
1.2 This report provides an overview of progress against key improvement priorities and 

performance indicators relevant to the Board at Quarter 4, 2008/09.  
 

2.0 Purpose of this Report 
 
2.1 This report provides a strategic overview of performance and progress against the 

improvement priorities,  specifically in relation to Health and Wellbeing, detailed in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11.   

 
2.2 The Action Tracker Summary Sheet (Appendix 1) provides an overall assessment of 

progress against each of the improvement priorities relevant to the Board; a rating of 
Red, Amber or Green is applied to indicate the status of each improvement priority.  
The detailed Action Trackers are available if required. 

 
2.3 The scope of most improvement priorities is wider than that of any individual 

performance indicator.  As such, the current performance reporting and accountability 
arrangements tracks progress against the improvement priorities and specific 
performance indicators.  This approach provides the necessary context to capture and 
monitor progress, providing both a qualitative and quantitative picture of performance.   

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator:  Steven Courtney 
 

Tel:  247 4707  

 

 

 
 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 53



3.0 Main Issues - Progress Towards Improvement Priorities 
 

3.1 The Health and Well Being theme (within the Leeds Strategic Plan) includes 6 
improvement priorities specifically relevant to the remit of Scrutiny Board (Health) – 
with the ‘improved psychological, mental health and learning disability services’ 
priority sub-divided and presented as services to adults and children, thus creating 7 
improvement priority areas. Of these, 4 are rated green, 2 amber and 0 red (as 
detailed in Appendix 1).  Those priority areas rated amber are: 

 

• Reduce teenage conception and improve sexual health (HW-2a).  Specific 
performance indicators relating to this priority and presented in Appendix 2 are: 

o NI 112 – under 18 conception rate 
o NI 113 – prevalence of Chlamydia in under 25 year olds 

 

• Improve psychological, mental health and learning disability services for those 
who need it (children) (HW-3a). Specific performance indicators relating to this 
priority and presented in Appendix 2 are: 

o NI 50 – emotional health of children 
o NI 51 – effectiveness of child and adolescent mental health services 

 
3.2 The joint NHS Leeds/ Leeds City Council performance report for quarter 4 (2008/09) 

is attached at Appendix 2 and draws attention to the following areas. 
 

• Health Care Associated Infections (HCAIs) 

• Childhood immunisation 

• Waiting times: Outpatients (13 weeks) and Inpatients (26 weeks) 

• Teenage pregnancy rates 

• Accident and emergency (A&E) 4 hour standard 

• Delayed discharge rates 
 
3.3 Relevant officers from NHS Leeds and Leeds City Council have been invited to  

present the key issues highlighted in this report and address any specific questions 
identified by the Scrutiny Board. 

 

4.0 Recommendation 
 
4.1 That members of Scrutiny Board: 

4.1.1 Note the content of the report and its appendices; 

4.1.2 Comment on any particular performance issues of concern; and, 

4.1.3 Determine any matters that require further scrutiny. 

5.0 Background Papers  
 

Leeds Strategic Plan 

 

Page 54



Appendix 1 Health Action Tracker Summary Quarter 4 2008-09

Code Improvement Priority Accountable 

Director
HW-1a Reduce Premature mortality in the most deprived areas Sandie Keene

HW-1b Reduce the number of people who smoke Sandie Keene

HW-1c Reduce rate of increase in obesity and raise physical activity for all. Sandie Keene

HW-2a Reduce teenage conception and improve sexual health Sandie Keene

HW-3a Improved psychological, mental health and learning disability services for those who need it.                                                                   Adults                 Childrens Sandie Keene

Code Improvement Priority Accountable 

DirectorTP-2c Improving lives by reducing the harm caused by substance misuse  Neil Evans

Thriving Places

Health and Well Being

Leeds Strategic Plan

P
a
g
e
 5

5



P
a
g
e
 5

6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Health Scrutiny Board
Joint Performance Report: 
Quarter 4 2008/09

July 2009 

LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - March 2009 1
Page 57



LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - March 2009 2
Page 58



Health Scrutiny Board Joint Performance Report – July 2009 

Overview 

This is the second Leeds City Council/NHS Leeds joint performance report.  The principle of a 
joint report has been established to align performance reporting, with the aims of 

 Reducing duplication  
 Eliminating potential confusion 
 Streamlining documentation 
 Bringing closer together the performance teams/functions from both organisations 

The work to totally integrate the two separate reports continues.  It has been possible on this 
occasion to further join together the reports previously used.  The move toward a single style 
and format is now almost complete.

The content of the report will be tailored to meet the requirements of the national reporting 
systems, ensuring that that the Health Scrutiny Board is fully involved in the process.   

The approach is generally to report by exception, except for top level and key indicators, 
which will be reported on each occasion.   

Executive Summary – Performance Information 

The NHS Leeds information that is provided here is the latest published data, at the time this 
joint report was drawn up (8 July 2009).  Further verbal updates will be provided at the 
meeting of the Scrutiny Board, where required and available.   

The LCC information is based on data from the Quarter 4 performance report (as at 31 March 
2009).

Where it is appropriate the performance of Leeds Teaching Hospitals Trust (LTHT) has also 
been shown, where that is different from the reported performance for NHS Leeds.  This 
difference occurs when LTHT treat patients from outside the city, often because they are 
delivering regional and national services. 

There are several performance indicators that are worth drawing attention to.  Some of these 
indicators are already well known to the Board as they have been reported as poor performing 
areas. The key performance points are - 

Health Care Associated Infections (HCAIs) 
This heading covers the reports on the rate of C.difficile and of MRSA, shown separately 
within the body of the report.   

MRSA numbers have now fallen to within the maximum number of cases.  This is a 
significant improvement.  The process for managing the reporting of cases has been 
improved and other changes have been made.  This has been supported in Leeds 
Teaching Hospitals Trust by the efforts of the Intensive Support Team from the 
Department of Health, NHS Leeds and the Strategic Health Authority.   

C.diff rates are also similarly within the maximum trajectory, another major improvement 
on past months.  The task with both C.Diff and MRSA is now to achieve long term 
sustainability and ensure that previous practices do not re-emerge and affect patient care. 

LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - March 2009 3
Page 59



LCC/NHS Leeds Joint Performance Report - March 2009 4

Childhood immunisation programme
Performance continues below required levels.  As reported previously, the most significant 
issue is with levels of coverage for the MMR vaccine.  There are some improvements now 
working their way through, as a result of an intensive programme of work, which 
continues. A GP level data sharing agreement, described in the detailed section on this 
topic will help ensure that delivery continues to improve.  One notable success has been 
the increased level of immunisations for looked after children, which has risen around 18% 
over the past few months. 

13 and 26 Weeks 
There are still some residual issues for that remain.  The position though is now much 
improved and the aim is now to eliminate such waits altogether.  

Teenage pregnancy rates 
Despite a performance recently that shows some improvement, delivery against the 
nationally-set trajectory has not been achieved.  A positive development here is the 
forthcoming availability of local level data, which should help give a more timely 
perspective to the work to reduce teenage conceptions.   

A&E 4 hr Standard 
This target was achieved across the whole year 2008/09.  This was despite performance 
being adversely affected during the winter pressures period and not recovering during 
spring.  The issue has been identified as due to a combination of factors, which are 
identified in the detailed section covering this topic.  However performance has now 
recovered somewhat and the 98% minimum standard was achieved during June.  One of 
the key issues affecting performance, the medical vacancies problem, will be addressed in 
August.  The task is now to ensure that performance is delivered during the run up to 
winter.

Delayed discharge rates 
There is still no clarity on the national threshold for achievement.  The chart in the section 
on this indicator shows performance during 2008/09 against that for 2007/08 to help 
provide context.  There is some risk that 08/09 performance will be indicated at as amber 
or underachieved.

Report prepared by:

Graham Brown  NHS Leeds 
Marilyn Summers  Leeds City Council 

8 July 2009 

Page 60



N
H

S
L

: 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
 s

e
e

n
 w

it
h

in
 1

8
 w

e
e
k

s
 -

 a
d

m
it

te
d

P
e

ri
o

d
ic

 R
e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

8
0
%

8
5
%

9
0
%

9
5
%

1
0

0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

8
9

.6
%

9
0

.1
%

9
0

.3
%

9
1

.7
%

9
1
.3

%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
9

0
.0

%
9

0
.0

%
9

0
.0

%
9

0
.0

%
9

0
.0

%

D
e

c
-0

8
J
a

n
-0

9
F

e
b

-0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p

r-
0

9

N
H

S
L

: 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
 s

e
e

n
 w

it
h

in
 1

8
 w

e
e
k

s
 -

 n
o

n
 a

d
m

it
te

d

P
e

ri
o

d
ic

 R
e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

8
5
%

9
0
%

9
5
%

1
0

0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
2

.4
%

9
6

.8
%

9
6
.8

%
9

6
.8

%
9

6
.8

0
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
9

5
.0

%
9
5

.0
%

9
5
.0

%
9

5
.0

%
9

5
.0

%

D
e

c
-0

8
J
a

n
-0

9
F

e
b

-0
9

M
a

r-
0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

1
8

 w
e
e
k
s
 r

e
fe

r
r
a
l 

to
 t

r
e
a
tm

e
n

t;
  

a
d

m
it

te
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
n

-a
d

m
it

te
d

 

1
8

 w
e

e
k

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 m

a
tr

ix
, 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 2
0
0

9

A
d

m
it
te

d
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

(a
d
ju

s
te

d
)

N
o

n
-a

d
m

it
te

d
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

N
o

 o
f 

re
p

o
rt

a
b
le

 

s
p

e
c
ia

lt
ie

s
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
rt

h
o

p
a

e
d
ic

s
) 

fa
ili

n
g
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

a
d
m

it
te

d
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd

N
o

 o
f 

re
p

o
rt

a
b
le

 

s
p

e
c
ia

lt
ie

s
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
rt

h
o

p
a

e
d

ic
s
) 

fa
ili

n
g

 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

 

n
o
n

a
d
m

it
te

d
 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd

T
o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
p
o

rt
a
b

le
 

s
p

e
c
ia

lt
ie

s
 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
rt

h
o

p
a

e
d

ic
s
) 

fa
ili

n
g

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

O
rt

h
o

p
a

e
d
ic

s
 -

 

n
o
 o

f 

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 

fa
ili

n
g

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

(w
it
h

o
u

t 

b
re

a
c
h

 

s
h

a
re

s
)

O
rt

h
o

p
a

e
d
ic

s
 -

 

n
o
 o

f 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

fa
ili

n
g

 t
o

 m
e
e

t 

(w
it
h
 b

re
a
c
h
 

s
h

a
re

s
)

J
a

n
-0

9
9

0
.1

9
6

.8
4

F
e

b
-0

9
9

0
.2

5
9

6
.7

9

M
a

r-
0

9
9

1
.6

5
9

6
.8

1

A
p

r-
0

9
9

1
.2

8
9
6

.8
5

7
1
2

2
N

A

M
a

y-
0

9
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A
N

A

Targ
et:  

 
90%

 of p
athw

ays 
whe

re p
atien

ts ar
e ad

mitt
ed fo

r ho
spita

l tre
atme

nt an
d 95

% of
 

path
way

s tha
t do

 not
 end

 in a
n ad

miss
ion, 

shou
ld be

 com
plete

d wi
thin

 18 
wee

ks, b
roke

n do
wn b

y sp
ecia

lty  
N

H
S

 L
e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
a

s
 a

 
h
e
a
lt
h
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 w

e
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 1

8
 w

e
e
k
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
t 
s
p
e
c
ia

lt
y
 l
e
v
e
l.
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 

u
ti
lis

e
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
L
T

H
T

 a
s
 

o
u

r 
m

a
in

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

a
n
d

 t
h

a
t 
w

e
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 h
e
a

lt
h

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y
. 

N
e
u
ro

s
u
rg

e
ry

: 
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

y
 L

T
H

T
. 
 T

h
e
re

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 i
s
s
u

e
 i
n

 t
h
is

 
s
p
e
c
ia

lt
y
. 
 C

le
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 1

8
 w

e
e
k
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

e
u
ro

s
u
rg

e
ry

 w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 s

p
e
c
ia

lt
ie

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
. 

P
la

s
ti
c
 S

u
rg

e
ry

: 
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
a
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

y
 L

T
H

T
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
p

la
s
ti
c
 s

u
rg

e
ry

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 f
o

r 
h

a
n

d
s
, 
is

 h
ig

h
 a

n
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t
o

 f
u

lly
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
e

x
p

a
n
s
io

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
th

e
 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

E
N

T
: 
 L

T
H

T
 d

u
ri
n
g

 0
8

/0
9

 f
o

c
u
s
e
d

 o
n

 c
le

a
ri
n
g

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
th

e
 

b
a

c
k
lo

g
 i
n

 E
N

T
, 
a

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

. 
 N

H
S

L
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

a
s
e
 l
in

e
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
d
m

it
te

d
 

p
a
ti
e
n
ts

.

O
rt

h
o
p
a
e
d
ic

s
: 
 N

H
S

L
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

b
a

s
e

 l
in

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 f
o

c
u
s
e

d
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 1

8
 w

e
e

k
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

t 
s
u

b
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lt
y
 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

r 
fo

o
t/
a
n
k
le

 a
n
d
 h

a
n
d
s
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
it
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 m
o
re

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 p
la

tf
o

rm
 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
1
8
 w

e
e
k
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

c
h

o
ic

e
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
O

rt
h

o
p

a
e

d
ic

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

 t
u

rn
 r

e
d

u
c
e
s
 t
h

e
 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 L

T
H

T
. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
 

M
a
tt
 W

a
ls

h
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
A

lis
o
n
 D

a
ill

y
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  
N

ig
e
l 
G

ra
y
  

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

5

Page 61



N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
u

tp
a
ti

e
n

ts
 b

re
a
c
h

in
g

 1
3
+

 w
e
e
k
s
 a

t 
e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

-e
n

d

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

N
H

S
L

 P
a
ti

e
n

ts

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

1
3
 W

e
e
k
s

6
3

1
1

3
0

J
a
n
-

0
9

F
e
b
-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a

y
-

0
9

J
u

n
-

0
9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u

g
-

0
9

S
e
p
-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o

v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

J
a

n
-

1
0

F
e
b
-

1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
u

tp
a
ti

e
n

ts
 b

re
a
c
h

in
g

 1
3
+

 w
e
e
k
s
 a

t 
e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

-e
n

d

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

L
T

H
T

 1
3

 W
e
e

k
 B

re
a
c
h

e
s
 

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

1
3
 W

e
e
k
s

6
1
7

1
9

1
0

J
a
n
-

0
9

F
e
b
-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-

0
9

J
u
n

-

0
9

J
u

l-
0
9

A
u
g
-

0
9

S
e
p
-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

J
a

n
-

1
0

F
e
b

-

1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

1
3

 w
e
e
k
s
 f

o
r
 o

u
tp

a
ti

e
n

ts

Targ
et:  

 
That

 the 
max

imum
 wai

t for
 a fir

st ou
tpat

ient 
appo

intm
ent b

e no
 mor

e tha
n 13

 
wee

ks fr
om G

P re
ferra

l  
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
1

3
 w

e
e

k
 b

re
a
c
h
e

s
 s

e
e

n
 i
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 M

a
y
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 a

s
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

d
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 L

T
H

T
, 
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

u
s
e

 o
f 
b

o
th

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 v

ia
 s

u
b
-

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

R
e
c
e
n
t 
b
re

a
c
h
e
s
 (

th
o

s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
tt
e

r 
p

a
rt

 o
f 
0

8
/0

9
) 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ri

m
a
ri

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
L

T
H

T
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 b
o
th

 n
e

u
ro

s
u
rg

e
ry

 a
n

d
 p

la
s
ti
c
 s

u
rg

e
ry

. 
 A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 m
u

c
h

 r
e

d
u

c
e
d

 t
h

e
re

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 s

o
m

e
 r

is
k
 a

ro
u
n

d
 p

la
s
ti
c
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 
o
u
tp

a
ti
e
n
t 
b
re

a
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 1

3
 w

e
e

k
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

. 
 A

ll 
th

e
s
e

 b
re

a
c
h
e

s
 r

e
la

te
 t
o

 
N

u
ff
ie

ld
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l.
  
L
T

H
T

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 N

u
ff
ie

ld
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
e
c
to

r 
h

o
s
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 r
e

d
u
c
e

 b
re

a
c
h

 r
is

k
s
. 
 

L
e

e
d
s
 T

e
a
c
h

in
g

 H
o
s
p

it
a

l 
it
s
e

lf
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d

 n
o

 b
re

a
c
h

e
s
 i
n

 M
a

y
. 
  

L
T

H
T

’s
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 
o

f 
tw

o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n
e
u

ro
s
u
rg

e
o

n
s
 m

e
a

n
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 o

n
 s

tr
e
a
m

 i
n
 A

u
g
. 
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 

n
e

u
ro

s
u

rg
e

ry
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 b
o

th
 N

u
ff

ie
ld

 H
o
s
p

it
a

ls
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

a
n

d
 P

io
n

e
e

r 
H

e
a

lt
h
c
a
re

 i
n
 S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
. 

A
s
 w

it
h

 N
e
u

ro
s
u
rg

e
ry

, 
a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 
c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
p

la
s
ti
c
 s

u
rg

e
ry

. 
 A

 b
e

n
c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 b

y
 L

T
H

T
 

c
u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

h
a
t 
is

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o

 a
lle

v
ia

te
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
re

a
c
h
 r

is
k
s
. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
  

 
M

a
tt
 W

a
ls

h
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
A

lis
o
n
 D

a
ill

y
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d

s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
le

a
d

: 
  
K

e
v
in

 G
a
lla

c
h
e
r 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

6

Page 62



2
6

 w
e
e
k
s
 f

o
r
 i

n
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
 b

re
a
c
h

in
g

 2
6
+

 w
e
e
k
s
 a

t 
e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

-e
n

d

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

N
H

S
L

 P
a

ti
e

n
ts

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

S
e
ri
e
s
2

1
1

1
9

1
0

1
0

J
a
n
-

0
9

F
e
b
-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-

0
9

J
u
n
-

0
9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-

0
9

S
e
p

-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

J
a
n
-

1
0

F
e

b
-

1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
 b

re
a
c
h

in
g

 2
6
+

 w
e
e
k
s
 a

t 
e
a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

-e
n

d

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

L
T

H
T

 2
6
 W

e
e
k
 B

re
a
c
h

e
s

 

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

2
6

 W
e
e
k
s

4
4

5
8

3
5

2
2

J
a

n
-

0
9

F
e

b
-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-

0
9

J
u
n

-

0
9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g

-

0
9

S
e

p
-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-

0
9

D
e

c
-

0
9

J
a

n
-

1
0

F
e

b
-

1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

Targ
et:  

 
That

 the 
max

imum
 wai

t for
 an i

npat
ient 

be n
o mo

re th
an 2

6 we
eks 

after
 a 

deci
sion

 to a
dmit

 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
2

6
 W

e
e

k
s
 b

re
a
c
h

e
s
 s

e
e

n
 i
n

 
A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 M

a
y
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 a

s
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

d
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 L

T
H

T
, 
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

u
s
e

 o
f 
b

o
th

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 
c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 v

ia
 s

u
b
-

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

B
re

a
c
h

e
s
 i
n

 p
a

s
t 
m

o
n

th
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
u

e
 t
o

 L
T

H
T

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 g

a
p

s
 i
n

 
b

o
th

 n
e

u
ro

s
u
rg

e
ry

 a
n

d
 p

la
s
ti
c
 s

u
rg

e
ry

. 
  

L
e

e
d
s
 T

e
a
c
h

in
g

 H
o
s
p

it
a

l 
it
s
e

lf
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d

 n
o

 N
H

S
L

 b
re

a
c
h
e

s
 i
n

 M
a

y
, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 t
w

o
 b

re
a
c
h
e

s
 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

P
C

T
s
. 
 T

h
e

 2
6

 w
e

e
k
 b

re
a

c
h

 i
n

 A
p

r 
o

c
c
u

rr
e
d

 i
n

 n
e

u
ro

s
u
rg

e
ry

 a
t 
L

T
H

T
. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 a

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 L

T
H

T
. 
  

L
T

H
T

’s
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 
o

f 
tw

o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
n
e
u

ro
s
u
rg

e
o

n
s
 m

e
a

n
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 c

o
m

e
 o

n
 s

tr
e
a
m

 i
n
 A

u
g
. 
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f
o
r 

n
e

u
ro

s
u

rg
e

ry
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 b
o

th
 N

u
ff

ie
ld

 H
o
s
p

it
a

ls
 i
n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

a
n

d
 P

io
n

e
e

r 
H

e
a

lt
h
c
a
re

 i
n
 S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d

 w
h
e
re

 i
t 
is

 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 A

 
b

e
n
c
h

m
a
rk

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 b
y
 L

T
H

T
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 
w

h
a

t 
is

 n
e

e
d
e

d
 t
o

 a
lle

v
ia

te
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

b
re

a
c
h

 r
is

k
s
. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
  

 
M

a
tt
 W

a
ls

h
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
A

lis
o
n
 D

a
ill

y
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d

s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
le

a
d

: 
  
K

e
v
in

 G
a
lla

c
h
e
r 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

7

Page 63



6
2

 d
a
y
 c

a
n

c
e
r
 w

a
it

 s
ta

n
d

a
r
d

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 f

ir
s

t 
c

a
n

c
e

r 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 6
2

 d
a

y
s

 o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
l

W
o

rl
d

 C
la

s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

7
7
.0

%
8
0
.9

%
7
9
.7

%
8
3
.7

%
8
8
.0

%

T
a
rg

e
t

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5

%
8
5
%

8
5

%
8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

J
a

n
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

9
M

a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9
S

e
p
-0

9
O

c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9
D

e
c
-0

9
J
a
n

-1
0

F
e
b

-1
0

M
a

r-
1
0

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

e
y
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 -

 L
T

H
T

 6
2
 d

a
y

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

L
T

H
T

 t
o

ta
l 
- 

6
2

 d
a

y

5
0
%

5
5
%

6
0
%

6
5
%

7
0
%

7
5
%

8
0
%

8
5
%

9
0
%

9
5
%

1
0
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

7
8

.1
%

8
2
.5

%

T
a
rg

e
t

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

8
5
%

Q
4
 0

8
/0

9
Q

1
 0

9
/1

0
Q

2
 0

9
/1

0
Q

3
 0

9
/1

0
Q

4
 0

9
/1

0

Targ
et:  

 
Targ

et no
t yet

 con
firm

ed.  
Pres

ently
 ass

umin
g th

at ac
hiev

eme
nt w

ill be
 that

 
ther

e be
 a m

axim
um w

ait ti
me o

f 62 
days

 from
 urg

ent G
P re

ferra
l for

 sus
pect

ed 
canc

er to
 the 

begi
nnin

g of
 trea

tmen
t, wi

th a 
targ

et of
 86%

 of p
atien

ts of
 

patie
nts s

een 
with

in th
at tim

e.
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
in

c
e
 M

a
rc

h
, 
w

it
h
 M

a
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
8

7
.7

%
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 J

u
n

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 o
f 
8

6
%

. 
T

h
is

 b
ri
n

g
s
 L

T
H

T
 n

e
a

r 
to

 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

. 
 L

T
H

T
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 w
e
e
k
ly

 a
c
ti
o
n
 l
is

t 
o
f 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 e
x
p
e

c
te

d
 r

e
s
o

lu
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
ti
e
n
t 
a
t 
ri
s
k
. 
 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 a
n

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 m
e

th
o
d

 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 d

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 u
rg

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 

S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 t
o
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
u
p
g
ra

d
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 

a
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 o
f 
1

0
0

%
. 
L

T
H

T
 a

re
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g

in
g

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 t
o

 a
p

p
ly

 t
h

e
 

u
p

g
ra

d
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

, 
w

h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 
 I

t 
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 

A
 w

e
e

k
ly

 a
c
ti
o

n
 l
is

t 
is

 n
o
w

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 f
o

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

, 
s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 6

2
 d

a
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 l
is

t.
 

L
u
n
g
 s

u
rg

e
ry

 c
a
p
a

c
it
y
 w

a
s
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 l
is

ts
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
n
c
e
lle

d
 

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
th

e
a

tr
e

 c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
e
s
th

e
ti
c
 c

o
v
e

r 
is

s
u

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 h

a
d

 a
 

k
n

o
c
k
 o

n
 e

ff
e
c
t 
in

to
 J

u
n
e

. 
  
L

T
H

T
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 l
e

a
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 
im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n

t 
re

o
c
c
u
rr

e
n
c
e
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
u
rg

ic
a

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

p
ir
e

 f
o

r 
s
u
rg

ic
a

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

o
n
 a

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 b

a
s
is

. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

te
r 

tr
u

s
t 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 M
id

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 

L
T

H
T

 f
o
r 

s
o

m
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e
 r

e
s
o

lv
e
d

. 
  
N

H
S

 L
e

e
d
s
 a

n
d

 
W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld

 P
C

T
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
a
c
ili

ta
ti
n
g
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 i
n
 e

a
rl
y
 A

u
g
u
s
t,
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e
 C

a
n
c
e

r 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 S

H
A

. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
 

M
a
tt
 W

a
ls

h
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
J
a
c
q

u
e

lin
e

 M
y
e

rs
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  
N

ig
e
l 
G

ra
y
  

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 
d

a
ta

 s
h

o
w

n
 f
o

r 
b
o

th
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e

 v
a

lid
a

te
d

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

8

Page 64



3
1
 D

a
y
 S

u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
C

h
e
m

o
th

e
ra

p
y
/S

u
rg

e
ry

: 
N

H
S

L

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
7
.1

%
9
3
.9

0
%

T
a
rg

e
t

9
7

%
9
7

%
9
7

%
9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7

%
9
7

%
9
7
%

9
7
%

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p

r-
0
9

M
a

y-
0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
J
u

l-
0
9

A
u
g
-0

9
S

e
p
-0

9
O

c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9
D

e
c
-0

9
J
a
n
-1

0
F

e
b
-1

0
M

a
r-

1
0

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 -

 L
T

H
T

 3
1
 d

a
y
 c

h
e
m

o
/s

u
rg

e
ry

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

L
T

H
T

 t
o
ta

l 
- 

3
1

 d
a

y
 c

h
e

m
o

/s
u

rg
e

ry

9
0
%

9
1
%

9
2
%

9
3
%

9
4
%

9
5
%

9
6
%

9
7
%

9
8
%

9
9
%

1
0
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
3
.5

%
9
3
.2

%

T
a
rg

e
t

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

9
7
%

Q
4
 0

8
/0

9
Q

1
 0

9
/1

0
Q

2
 0

9
/1

0
Q

3
 0

9
/1

0
Q

4
 0

9
/1

0

3
1

 d
a
y
 c

a
n

c
e
r
 w

a
it

 s
ta

n
d

a
r
d

: 
S

u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n

t 

c
h

e
m

o
th

e
r
a
p

y
 a

n
d

 s
u

r
g

e
r
y

Targ
et:  

 
Targ

et no
t yet

 con
firm

ed.  
Pres

ently
 ass

umin
g th

at ac
hiev

eme
nt w

ill be
 that

 
ther

e be
 a m

axim
um w

ait ti
me o

f 31 
days

 sec
ond

 and
 sub

sequ
ent 

chem
othe

rapy
 or s

urge
ry, w

ith a
 targ

et of
 97%

 of p
atien

ts of
 pati

ents
 see

n 
with

in th
at tim

e. 
3
1
 d

a
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 f
ir
s
t 
a
n
d
 

s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

 f
o

re
c
a

s
t 
J
u
n

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 f
o
r 

s
u

b
s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
ts

 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h

e
 f
a

il 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
9
2
.5

%
 a

n
d
 b

o
rd

e
rl
in

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

1
s
t 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
ts

 a
t 
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
9
4
.5

%
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 f
o

r 
M

a
y
, 
a

n
d

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 d
e
c
lin

in
g

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 s

in
c
e
 M

a
rc

h
 

w
h

e
n

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e

a
c
h
e

d
 9

7
.4

%
. 

A
 w

e
e

k
ly

 a
c
ti
o

n
 l
is

t 
is

 n
o
w

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 f
o

r 
3
1
 d

a
y
 t
a
rg

e
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 6

2
 d

a
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 l
is

t.
 

A
re

a
s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

ri
s
k
 a

re
 l
u

n
g

; 
u

ro
lo

g
y
; 
s
k
in

 a
n

d
 s

a
rc

o
m

a
. 

T
h
e
 u

ro
lo

g
y
 r

e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 p

a
th

w
a
y
, 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 f
ro

m
 m

id
 M

a
y
, 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 

s
h

o
w

n
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
is

 t
im

e
. 
 L

T
H

T
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 

re
a
s
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

is
 a

n
d

 a
re

 t
a

k
in

g
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
d
 p

a
th

w
a
y
. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
 

M
a
tt
 W

a
ls

h
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
J
a
c
q

u
e

lin
e

 M
y
e

rs
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  
N

ig
e
l 
G

ra
y
 

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 
d

a
ta

 s
h

o
w

n
 f
o

r 
b
o

th
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e

 v
a

lid
a

te
d

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

9

Page 65



I
n

c
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
M

R
S

A
 b

a
c
te

r
a
e
m

ia

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

M
R

S
A

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 b

lo
o

d
 c

u
lt

u
re

 e
p

is
o

d
e
s
 (

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

ta
rg

e
t)

V
it

a
l 

S
ig

n
s

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 -
 P

ro
v

id
e

r

L
T

H
T

: 
N

o
 o

f 
c
a
s
e

s

05

1
0

1
5

05
0

1
0

0

1
5

0

L
T

H
T

 A
c
tu

a
l

1
2

1
2

8
5

3
6

T
a
rg

e
t

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6

Y
T

D
 T

ra
j.

6
0

6
6

7
2

6
1

2
1
8

2
4

3
0

3
6

4
2

4
8

5
4

6
0

6
6

7
2

Y
T

D
 A

c
tu

a
l

1
0
1

1
1
3

1
2

1
5

8
1
4

J
a
n
-

0
9

F
e

b
-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-

0
9

J
u
n
-

0
9

J
u

l-

0
9

A
u
g
-

0
9

S
e
p

-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

J
a
n
-

1
0

F
e

b
-

1
0

M
a

r-

1
0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
M

R
S

A
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ta

b
le

 t
o

 N
H

S
L

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

P
C

T
 A

c
tu

a
l

012345

P
C

T
 A

c
tu

a
l

0
1

0
3

0
0

J
a
n
-

0
9

F
e
b

-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
y
-

0
9

J
u
n
-

0
9

J
u
l-
0

9
A

u
g

-

0
9

S
e
p

-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

J
a
n
-

1
0

F
e
b

-

1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

Targ
et:

To n
ot h

ave 
mor

e tha
n 72

 cas
es fo

r 201
0/11

, in l
ine w

ith th
e ag

reed
 max

imum
. 

F
o
r 

M
a
y
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 3
 M

R
S

A
 c

a
s
e
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
A

ll 
o
f 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r

o
o
t 

c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 
in

fe
c
ti
o

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 

w
it
h

in
 L

T
H

T
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 m

o
n

th
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 t
h

a
t 
L
T

H
T

 w
a

s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h

e
 

tr
a
je

c
to

ry
 l
e
v
e
l.
 

F
o

r 
J
u

n
e

, 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 6
 M

R
S

A
 b

a
c
te

ri
u
m

 c
a

s
e

s
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 L
T

H
T

, 
th

o
u

g
h

 t
h

is
 

is
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 v
a

lid
a

ti
o

n
, 
b

o
th

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

ri
g

in
. 
 D

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

is
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
v
a
lid

a
ti
o

n
, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 m
a

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 s
lig

h
tl
y
. 
 

T
h

e
 M

R
S

A
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 b
o

th
 L

T
H

T
 a

n
d

 N
H

S
L

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

ta
rt

e
d

 
a

n
d

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 r

o
b

u
s
t.

  
D

e
c
o

lo
n

is
a

ti
o
n

 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 M

R
S

A
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
k
in

 o
n

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 r

e
d

u
c
e
s
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 t
o

 b
o

th
 t
h

e
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t
o

 
o

th
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
u

rs
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 w

a
rd

. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 a
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
. 

F
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
y
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
 a

re
a

 o
f 
e
ld

e
rl
y
 m

e
d
ic

in
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

c
re

e
n
e
d
 

a
c
u

te
ly

 o
n

 a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o

 h
o
s
p

it
a

l.
  
N

H
S

L
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 
a

ll 
a

c
u

te
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a
re

. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
 

Ia
n

 C
a

m
e
ro

n
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
B

ri
a

n
 G

o
d

fr
e
y
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d

s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
le

a
d

: 
  
S

im
o
n
 B

a
lm

e
r 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

10

Page 66



I
n

c
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
C

. 
d

if
fi

c
il

e

C
lo

s
tr

id
iu

m
 d

if
fi

c
il

e
 i

n
fe

c
ti

o
n

 r
a

te
s

 (
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r 
ta

rg
e

t)

W
o

rl
d

 C
la

s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

1
2
0

02
0

0

4
0

0

6
0

0

8
0

0

1
0

0
0

1
2

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l

5
2

5
3

1
2

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
7
3

7
0

6
5

6
1

5
9

5
8

6
1

6
9

7
3

7
3

6
9

6
5

Y
T

D
 T

ra
j.

7
3

1
4
3

2
0
8

2
6

9
3
2

8
3
8
6

4
4
7

5
1
6

5
8
9

6
6
2

7
3
1

7
9
6

Y
T

D
 T

o
ta

l
5
2

1
0
5

1
1
7

A
p

r-
0
9

M
a
y
-

0
9

J
u

n
-0

9
J
u

l-
0
9

A
u
g
-

0
9

S
e
p
-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o

v
-

0
9

D
e
c
-

0
9

J
a
n
-1

0
F

e
b
-1

0
M

a
r-

1
0

C
lo

s
tr

id
iu

m
 d

if
fi

c
il
e
 i
n

fe
c
ti

o
n

 r
a
te

s
 (

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

ta
rg

e
t)

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

C
.D

if
f 

- 
L
T

H
T

:P
o
s
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n

0

2
0

4
0

6
0

8
0

1
0
0

1
2
0

02
0
0

4
0
0

6
0
0

8
0
0

1
0
0

0

1
2
0

0

A
c
tu

a
l

3
2

3
1

1
9

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
5
3

5
2

4
8

4
5

4
3

4
2

4
5

5
1

5
3

5
3

5
1

4
8

Y
T

D
 T

ra
j.

5
3

1
0
5

1
5
3

1
9
8

2
4
1

2
8
3

3
2

8
3
7
9

4
3
2

4
8

5
5
3

6
5

8
4

Y
T

D
 T

o
ta

l
3
2

6
3

8
2

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a

y
-

0
9

J
u
n

-0
9

J
u
l-
0

9
A

u
g
-

0
9

S
e

p
-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o
v
-0

9
D

e
c
-

0
9

J
a
n
-1

0
F

e
b
-1

0
M

a
r-

1
0

Targ
et:

That
 the 

num
ber 

of ca
ses 

be n
o hig

her 
than

 the 
agre

ed m
axim

um o
f 584

 for 
LTH

T an
d 79

6 for
 the 

heal
th ec

ono
my b

y the
 end

 of M
arch

 201
0. 

A
t 
p

re
s
e
n

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 d

e
g

re
e

 o
f 
fo

c
u

s
e
d

 w
o
rk

 i
n

 L
T

H
T

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

fi
g
u
re

s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

ro
p
 a

n
d

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 t
a
rg

e
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r.

 

T
h

e
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 t
im

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 D

H
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
te

a
m

 c
o

m
e

s
 t
o

 a
n

 e
n

d
 

in
 J

u
ly

. 
 M

u
c
h
 e

ff
o
rt

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 
in

, 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 L
e

e
d
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 
s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
d

e
te

ri
o

ra
te

. 

F
o
r 

M
a
y
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 4
4
 c

a
s
e
s
 r

e
p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 L

T
H

T
; 
th

is
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
ir
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 

o
f 
5

2
 a

n
d

 m
u
c
h

 r
e
d

u
c
e

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 9

7
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

  
F

o
r 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

fi
g

u
re

 w
a
s
 5

3
 (

a
s
 w

e
 a

re
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
s
 a

 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

o
f 
a
ll 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

) 
a
n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 t
h
e
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 o

f 
7
0
. 

R
e
c
e

n
t 
L

T
H

T
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 A

p
ri

l 
- 

3
9

 (
3

2
 -

 p
o

s
t 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t
o

 
L

T
H

T
);

 M
a

y
 -

 4
4

 (
3

1
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
);

 J
u

n
e

 -
 2

7
 (

1
9

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ta

b
le

) 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
a

 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 o

f 
4

8
 f
o

r 
L

T
H

T
 a

n
d

 6
5

 f
o

r 
N

H
S

 L
e
e

d
s
. 
 I
f 
th

e
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
t 
th

is
 l
e
v
e
l,
 t
h
e
n
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h

e
 f
o

u
rt

h
 m

o
n

th
 w

h
e

re
 f
ig

u
re

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
e
lo

w
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
. 
 

L
e

e
d

s
 T

e
a

c
h

in
g

 H
o

s
p

it
a

ls
 C

D
if
f.

 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 i
s
 a

 v
a
ri
a
b
le

 m
o
n
th

ly
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

 s
in

c
e
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 f
o
r 

fe
e

d
b

a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 C

Q
C

 a
b

o
u

t 
re

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
 

Ia
n

 C
a

m
e
ro

n
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
B

ri
a

n
 G

o
d

fr
e
y
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d

s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
le

a
d

: 
  
S

im
o
n
 B

a
lm

e
r 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

11

Page 67



N
I
 1

1
2

: 
T
e
e
n

a
g

e
 p

r
e
g

n
a
n

c
y
 r

a
te

s

T
e
e
n

a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a
n

c
y
 r

a
te

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0

 f
e

m
a
le

s
 a

g
e
d

 1
5
-1

7

S
e
x
u

a
l 
H

e
a
lt

h 0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

A
c
tu

a
l 

4
9
.2

5
0

.7
5
1

.6
5

1
.8

4
8

.2

T
a
rg

e
t

2
6
.6

2
7

.9
4
3

.7
4

3
.7

4
3

.7
4

5
4
2

.7
2
2

.7

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0
0

7
 -

 Q
1

2
0

0
7
 -

 Q
2

2
0

0
7
 -

 Q
3

2
0

0
8

2
0
0

9
2

0
1

0

Targ
et:  

 
The 

rate
 of u

nder
-18 c

once
ptio

n ra
tes s

hou
ld re

duce
 by a

t lea
st ha

lf by
 201

0, 
set a

gain
st th

e 19
98 b

asel
ine, 

loca
lly b

y 55
%. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
fo

rm
a
lly

 v
a
lid

a
te

d
 f
ig

u
re

 (
fo

r 
2
0
0
6
) 

is
 5

0
.9

; 
0
.9

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 1

9
9
8
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
re

p
o

rt
 d

u
e
 t
o
 r

e
v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
. 
 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
s
 h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 o

f 
n

o
t 
b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

lo
n

g
e
r 

te
rm

. 
  

T
h
e
 g

ra
p
h
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
3
 o

f 
2
0
0
7
 (

th
e
 

d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

n
 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

o
t 
fu

lly
 v

a
lid

a
te

d
).

 T
h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 u

s
e
d

 t
o
 g

iv
e
 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
im

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 o
ff

ic
ia

lly
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
d
a
ta

 b
e

c
o
m

in
g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l,
 f
u
lly

 v
a
lid

a
te

d
 

fi
g

u
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 F
e

b
 2

0
0
9

, 
c
o
v
e

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 o

f 
2

0
0

7
. 

A
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
fr

o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
, 

d
a

ta
 i
s
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 o

n
 b

o
o

k
in

g
s
 f
o

r 
N

H
S

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

t 
L

T
H

T
, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

‘M
a
te

rn
it
y
 M

a
tt
e
rs

’ 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 T

h
is

 d
a

ta
 m

a
k
e
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 

p
re

g
n

a
n
c
ie

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 
 E

a
rl
y
 u

s
e

 o
f 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 s
h

o
w

s
 i
t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 a

llo
w

 
c
o

m
p
a

ri
s
o
n

 w
it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
s
im

ila
r 

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
 T

h
e

 d
a

ta
 i
ts

e
lf
 i
s
 

n
o

t 
d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
d

a
ta

 u
s
e
d

 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

h
a
rt

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 

u
s
e
d

 b
y
 D

H
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
c
a

re
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n
g

 
N

H
S

 L
e
e

d
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t.
  

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

s
 i
t 
b

u
ild

s
 u

p
 o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
 i
t 

w
ill

 a
llo

w
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

ti
n
g

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

It
 i
s
 h

o
p

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
a

s
 t
h

is
 d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 b

e
c
o

m
e

s
 m

o
re

 r
o

b
u
s
t,

 a
n

d
 e

v
e

n
 

th
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 l
im

it
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 L

T
H

T
, 
it
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 e

a
rl
y
 

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
re

n
d
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 
c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l-
le

v
e
l 
d
a
ta

. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

S
a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

M
a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

12

Page 68



L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

13

F
o

u
r
 h

o
u

r
 A

&
E
 s

ta
n

d
a
r
d

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
 s

p
e
n

d
in

g
 l

e
s
s
 t

h
a
n

 4
h

rs
 i
n

 A
&

E

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

9
0
%

9
2
%

9
4
%

9
6
%

9
8
%

1
0
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
5

.2
9
6

.3
9
6
.4

9
5
.9

9
7
.1

9
8
.4

Y
e
a

r 
to

 D
a
te

9
8

.4
9
8

.2
9
8
.1

9
5
.9

9
5
.8

9
7
.1

T
a

rg
e
t

9
8

.0
9
8

.0
9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8

.0
9
8

.0
9
8

.0
9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8
.0

9
8

.0

J
a
n
-

0
9

F
e

b
-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a

y-

0
9

J
u
n
-

0
9

J
u
l-

0
9

A
u
g
-

0
9

S
e
p
-

0
9

O
c
t-

0
9

N
o

v
-

0
9

D
e

c
-

0
9

J
a
n
-

1
0

F
e
b
-

1
0

M
a
r-

1
0

A
p

r-

1
0

M
a
y-

1
0

J
u

n
-

1
0

J
u
l-

1
0

A
u
g

-

1
0

Targ
et:  

 
That

 at le
ast 9

8% o
f pat

ients
 spe

nd 4
 hou

rs o
r les

s in 
A&E

, fro
m ar

rival
 to 

adm
issio

n, tr
ansf

er o
r dis

char
ge. 

L
T

H
T

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
w

e
e

k
 o

f 
J
u

n
e

 h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 9

8
%

 b
e
in

g
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
. 
 I

n
 J

u
n

e
 t
h

e
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 

w
a
s
 9

8
.4

%
. 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

t 
th

a
t 
d
a
te

 i
s
 9

7
.1

4
%

. 
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 n

o
ti
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 f
o
r 

A
p
r 

a
n
d
 M

a
y
. 
 I
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 
L
T

H
T

 h
a
v
e
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

re
e

 k
e

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
a

c
to

rs
: 

 
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e
s
: 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 5
.4

%
 r

is
e

 i
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e
s
 i
n

 
A

p
r 

a
n

d
 M

a
y
 0

9
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 i
n

 0
8

. 
 

T
h
e
 p

a
tt
e
rn

 o
f 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
s
 h

a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 u

n
it
s
 m

u
c
h
 b

u
s
ie

r 
la

te
r 

in
 t
h
e
 e

v
e
n
in

g
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 a

t 
L
G

I.
  
 

 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
m

e
d

ic
a

l 
v
a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
. 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 e

ff
o
rt

s
, 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 f
ill

e
d

 a
n

d
 l
im

it
e

d
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 c
o
v
e

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 v
ia

 l
o

c
u

m
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 
 

T
h

e
 v

a
c
a
n

c
ie

s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 f
ill

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 A

u
g

/S
e

p
t.

 

L
T

H
T

 h
a

v
e
 a

ls
o
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 o
n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c

a
n
 r

e
tu

rn
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
 t
h
is

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

: 
 

M
e
d
ic

a
l 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
h
o
u
rs

 u
n
ti
l 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

 a
re

 f
ill

e
d
. 

 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 l
o
c
u
m

 a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
v
e
r.

 
 

P
a
y
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ra

te
s
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
s
h
if
ts

 
 

B
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
S

it
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 A
&

E
 d

u
ri
n
g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs

. 
 

R
e

d
ir
e
c
t,

 w
h

e
re

 c
lin

ic
a

lly
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

, 
to

 o
th

e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

 s
e
tt
in

g
s
. 

 
U

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
n
o
n
-e

le
c
ti
v
e
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 

ra
te

s
 f
ro

m
 A

&
E

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 L

T
H

T
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
: 

 
P

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 w

a
lk

-i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

s
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 A

&
E

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 L

T
H

T
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
-d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

u
t 
o

f 
h

o
u

rs
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

 c
a

ll 
h

a
n

d
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

H
e

a
lt

h
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 l
e

a
d

: 
  

 
M

a
tt
 W

a
ls

h
 

L
T

H
T

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
le

a
d

: 
  

 
P

h
ili

p
 N

o
rm

a
n
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

a
d

: 
  
N

ig
e
l 
G

ra
y
  

Page 69



N
I
 1

3
1

: 
D

e
la

y
e
d

 t
r
a
n

s
fe

r
s
 o

f 
c
a
r
e

Targ
et:  

 
D

e
la

y
e

d
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c

a
re

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

No i
dent

ified
 targ

et (b
eyon

d th
e Vit

al Si
gn t

rajec
tory

 use
d in 

the c
hart

) at t
his 

time
, wit

h 20
07/0

8 to 
be u

sed 
to se

t a b
asel

ine i
n a m

etho
d ye

t to 
be d

efine
d.

0
.0

0

1
.0

0

2
.0

0

3
.0

0

4
.0

0

5
.0

0

6
.0

0

rate per 1,000 pop

0
8
0

9
3
.4

7
3

.9
7

4
.1

4
4
.0

2

0
7
0

8
5
.6

2
5

.2
9

3
.6

4
3
.4

7

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

T
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
o

n
 d

e
la

y
e
d

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a

re
 (

o
ft

e
n

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
s
) 

is
 u

n
d
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
T

h
e
 c

h
a
rt

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

o
f 
th

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
a
s
 o

p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o

 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 a

c
u
te

 b
e
d
 

d
a

y
. 
  
T

h
e

 C
a
re

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
d

e
fi
n

e
d

 t
h

e
 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 f
o

r 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
w

ri
ti
n
g
. 
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

e
la

y
e

d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a

re
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 i
n
d

ic
a

te
s
 a

n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
ra

ll 
o
n
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
, 
a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 i
n
 

Q
1

-2
 w

a
s
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 l
e
v
e

ls
 s

e
e

n
 i
n

 0
7

/0
8

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 Q
3

 a
t 
th

e
 p

o
in

t 
w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 

tr
a
je

c
to

ry
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d
 t
o
 2

.7
5
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
. 
  
 

T
h

e
 U

n
p

la
n
n
e

d
 C

a
re

 B
o

a
rd

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 
it
s
 

k
e
y
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

s
, 
a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 s
ta

rt
e
d
 i
n

 J
a

n
 2

0
0
9

 o
n

 s
tr

e
a

m
lin

in
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 h

o
w

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
. 
 T

h
e

 U
n
p

la
n

n
e

d
 C

a
re

 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
G

ro
u
p

 n
o
w

 r
e
c
e

iv
e
s
 a

n
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
lla

ti
n
g
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

b
e

d
 d

a
y
s
 t
a

k
e

n
 u

p
 w

it
h

 d
e
la

y
s
, 
a

s
 a

n
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

 T
h

is
 

G
ro

u
p

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

re
a
s
 t
o

 c
o

n
ta

in
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 d
e

la
y
s
 

fu
rt

h
e
r.

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o

 C
h

e
c
k
lis

t 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
M

a
tt
 W

a
ls

h
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

N
ig

e
l 
G

ra
y
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
L

e
a

d
: 

 
 

 
P

a
u

la
 D

e
a

ri
n
g

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

14

Page 70



P
r
o

p
o

r
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 w
h

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

im
m

u
n

is
a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 a
g

e
s
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 g
iv

e
n

 i
m

m
u

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 a
t 

th
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

g
e

s

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

/V
it

a
l 
S

ig
n

s
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s

5
0

.0
%

5
5

.0
%

6
0

.0
%

6
5

.0
%

7
0

.0
%

7
5

.0
%

8
0

.0
%

8
5

.0
%

9
0

.0
%

9
5

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%

D
T

a
P

/I
P

V
/H

ib
9

1
.7

%
9
3
.5

%

H
ib

/M
e
n

C
8
3
.8

%
8

8
.8

%
9

1
.3

%
8
8
.8

%

D
T

a
P

/I
P

V
/H

ib
 (

B
o
o

s
t)

7
6
.8

%
7

5
.4

%
7

2
.3

%
7
4
.6

%

M
M

R
 1

7
9
.1

%
7

6
.6

%
7

9
.3

%
8
2
.1

%

P
C

V
 (

B
o
o

s
t)

6
0
.2

%
8

8
.8

%
7

8
.5

%
8
2
.5

%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
9
5
.0

%
9

5
.0

%
9

5
.0

%
9
5
.0

%

Q
1
 0

8
-0

9
Q

2
 0

8
-0

9
Q

3
 0

8
-0

9
Q

4
 0

8
-0

9

Targ
et:  

 
To e

nsur
e tha

t chi
ldre

n ar
e im

mun
ised

 in li
ne w

ith r
ecom

men
ded 

leve
ls of

 
cove

rage
, for

 a ra
nge 

of si
x ke

y im
mun

isati
on p

rogr
amm

es 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o
v
e
rs

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
im

m
u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
M

M
R

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
ts

e
lf
 i
s
 

a
 s

ta
n

d
-a

lo
n

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
 W

o
rl

d
 C

la
s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

R
is

k
s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
e

 -
 

 
C

h
ild

 H
e

a
lt
h

 r
e

c
o
rd

s
 n

o
t 
u

p
 t
o

 d
a

te
 

 
D

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 n

o
t 
o
n

 S
y
s
te

m
 O

n
e

 
 

N
o

n
 S

y
s
te

m
 O

n
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
a
b

le
 t
o

 v
ie

w
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 i
m

m
u
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 

re
c
o

rd
s
  

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 v

is
it
o
rs

 n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
D

N
A

s
 s

o
 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 f
o
llo

w
-u

p
 

 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
to

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f
a
c
ili

ta
to

r 
n
o
w

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
  

 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
u
p
ta

k
e
 f
a
lli

n
g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 f
o
r 

M
M

R
. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d

e
rw

a
y
 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

e
v
e
n
t 
o
n
 7

 J
u
ly

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h
e
 

fi
rs

t 
s
te

p
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 A

s
-I

s
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
 M

a
p
p
in

g
 E

x
e
rc

is
e
. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 a
id

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 o
n
 

im
m

u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h
e
 M

M
R

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

A
ll 

b
u

t 
o

n
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t
o

 a
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a

ri
n

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 

m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 P

C
T

 c
a
n
 d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
 d

a
ta

 d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 G

P
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 
e
n
a
b
le

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 C

h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 f
o
rm

 
C

O
V

E
R

 d
a
ta

. 
  
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 t
h
is

 m
o
n
th

. 

D
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

n
 i
n

 t
h
e
 c

h
a
rt

 o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
q
u
it
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o

rr
e
c
te

d
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 v

e
rs

io
n
s
. 
 O

n
 t
h
is

 o
c
c
a
s
io

n
, 
Q

1
 &

 Q
2
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 

D
T

a
P

/I
P

V
/H

ib
 i
m

m
u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 A

ls
o
, 
H

P
V

 i
m

m
u
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 

a
re

 n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
h

o
u

g
h

 a
g
a

in
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

. 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
Ia

n
 C

a
m

e
ro

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

S
im

o
n
 B

a
lm

e
r 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

B
e
ry

l 
B

le
a
s
b
y
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

15

Page 71



N
I
 4

0
: 

N
u

m
b

e
r
 o

f 
d

r
u

g
 u

s
e
r
s
 i

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n

t

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
ru

g
 u

s
e

rs
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 a
s
 b

e
in

g
 i

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n

t 
(N

I 
4

0
)

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

2
0

0
0

2
5

0
0

3
0

0
0

3
5

0
0

4
0

0
0

0
8

-0
9

3
3

2
2

3
3

7
2

3
3

9
3

3
3

9
8

3
4
0

8
3

4
4

1
3

4
6

0
3

4
8

9
3

5
1

2
3

5
2

8
3

5
3
7

3
5

6
1

tr
a

je
c
to

ry
2

9
4
1

2
9

4
4

2
9

4
6

2
9

4
9

2
9
5

1
2

9
5

4
2

9
5

6
2

9
5

8
2

9
6

1
2

9
6

3
2

9
6
6

2
9

6
8

A
p

r
M

a
y

J
u
n

J
u
l

A
u

g
S

e
p

O
c
t

N
o

v
D

e
c

J
a

n
F

e
b

M
a

r

Targ
et:  

 
To in

crea
se th

e nu
mbe

r of 
drug

 use
rs in

 trea
tmen

t, ac
hiev

ing t
he m

onth
ly 

targ
et tr

ajec
tory

. 
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
tr

a
je

c
to

ry
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 d

u
ri
n
g

 2
0
0

8
/0

9
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 o
n

 t
h

is
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
o

v
in

g
 i
n

to
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

C
a

ro
l 
C

o
c
h
ra

n
e

 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

L
u
k
e
 T

u
rn

b
u
ll 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

16

Page 72



N
I 
1
2

3
a
: 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 -

 C
it

y
 w

id
e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

A
c
tu

a
l

2
3
.0

4
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
2
1
%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0

/1
1

N
I 
1
2

3
b

: 
S

m
o

k
in

g
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 -

 D
e
p

ri
iv

e
d

 a
re

a
s

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

3
5
%

A
c
tu

a
l

2
9
.6

3
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
2

7
%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0

9
/1

0
2
0
1
0

/1
1

N
I
 1

2
3

: 
S

m
o

k
in

g
 P

r
e
v
a
le

n
c
e
 

Targ
et:  

 
Red

uce 
the p

reva
lenc

e of 
smo

king
 acro

ss th
e cit

y an
d to

 nar
row 

the g
ap 

betw
een 

the m
ost d

epri
ved 

area
s an

d th
e res

t of 
Leed

s. 
T

h
e

 l
a

te
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 d
a

ta
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 (

fo
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

) 
in

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

e
 

c
u

rr
e
n

t 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 p

re
v
a

le
n
c
e

 o
f 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 a
g

e
d

 1
6

+
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d

s
 i
s
 2

3
.0

4
%

. 
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

ro
k
e
n

 d
o
w

n
 t
o
 2

9
.6

3
%

 i
n
 t

h
e

 d
e
p

ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d

 2
0

.1
6

%
 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
. 
 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 f
o
r 

Q
1
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

A
u
g
 0

9
. 
  
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 L
e
e
d

s
 h

a
s
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 

p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
5

 y
e

a
rs

, 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
tr

e
n
d

 i
s
 s

u
g
g

e
s
ti
n

g
 t
h
e

 d
e

c
lin

e
 

is
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 t
o

 p
la

te
a

u
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
. 
It
 i
s
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
th

e
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

g
e
n

d
a

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 

T
h
e
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
/L

e
e

d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n
d

 i
s
 l
in

k
in

g
 w

it
h

 r
e
g

io
n

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 

th
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
c
h

e
a

p
 a

n
d

 i
lli

c
it
 t
o

b
a
c
c
o

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n

 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
d
e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 
  
  

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o

f 
a

n
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 

w
it
h

in
 t
h

e
 R

ic
h

m
o

n
d

 H
ill

 a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
, 
w

h
e

re
 u

p
ta

k
e

 o
f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 h
is

to
ri
c
a

lly
 p

o
o

r.
  

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 a

re
: 
 

T
h

e
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 4

 w
e

e
k
 q

u
it
 t
a

rg
e

t 
 

T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 h

ig
h

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
  

T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 f
o

c
u
s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 
o

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 w
o
rk

 i
n

 d
e

p
ri
v
e

d
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 l
o

w
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s

 E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
Ia

n
 C

a
m

e
ro

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

B
re

n
d
a
 F

u
lla

rd
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
 

H
e

a
th

e
r 

T
h
o
m

s
o

n
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

17

Page 73



N
I
 1

2
5

: 
I
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
 f

o
r
 o

ld
e
r
 p

e
o

p
le

 

N
I 
1

2
5

: 
A

c
h

ie
v

in
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

h
a

b
/i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a

re

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

8
5
%

8
7
%

8
9
%

9
1
%

9
3
%

9
5
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
1
.9

0
%

T
a

rg
e
t

9
0
%

9
0
%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0

9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

Targ
et:  

 
To d

elive
r im

prov
ed c

are s
o as

 to a
chie

ve in
depe

nden
ce fo

r old
er p

eopl
e 

thro
ugh

 reh
abili

tatio
n an

d/or
 inte

rme
diate

 care
 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
to

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 

re
h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 h
o
s
p

it
a
l 
e
p
is

o
d
e
. 
It
 c

a
p
tu

re
s
 t
h
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

 o
f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 H

e
a

lt
h

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 j
o

in
t 
te

a
m

s
. 
T

h
e

 m
e

a
s
u
re

 i
s
 

d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 t
h

e
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
o
t 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

te
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 

a
n

d
 N

H
S

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 b
o
u

n
d

a
ri
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 f
o

r 
a

 n
e

w
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 I
t 
re

lie
s
 o

n
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

ly
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 f
ro

m
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0

0
9

 o
n

w
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 n
o

 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 

A
s
 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 l
im

it
e
d

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 d
a
ta

 d
e

ri
v
e

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 f
a

ir
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

s
a

m
p

le
 

a
n

d
 i
n

it
ia

l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 w

o
u
ld

 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 b

a
s
e
 

lin
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
s
e
t 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
. 
F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 a
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
9

0
%

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 w
e

ll 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
. 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
, 
L

C
C

 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

S
o
m

e
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

18

Page 74



N
I
 8

: 
A

d
u

lt
 P

a
r
ti

c
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
p

o
r
t 

a
n

d
 

a
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
c
r
e
a
ti

o
n

 

N
I 

8
 A

d
u

lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti

v
e

 r
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

In
d

ic
a
to

r

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

3
5
%

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0
.6

%
2
8
.4

%

T
a
rg

e
t

2
1
.6

%
2
2
.6

%
2
3
.6

%
2
4
.6

%

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

Targ
et:  

 
To in

crea
se th

e pa
rtici

patio
n of

 adu
lts in

 spo
rt an

d ac
tive 

recr
eatio

n to
 24.6

% 
by 2

011/
12 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 3

0
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
ra

te
 

in
te

n
s
it
y
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 3

 o
r 

m
o
re

 d
a
y
s
 e

a
c
h

 w
e
e

k
. 
T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

 
w

a
s
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 b

y
 I
p

s
o

s
 M

O
R

I 
w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 S

p
o

rt
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

s
u

rv
e

y
. 
T

h
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 f
ro

m
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

0
5

 -
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

6
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 1

,0
0

0
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 f
ro

m
 m

o
s
t 
lo

c
a
l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

is
 'A

c
ti
v
e

 P
e

o
p

le
 2

' w
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

 s
a

m
p

le
 s

iz
e

 t
o
 5

0
0

. 

L
e

e
d
s
 h

a
s
 m

o
v
e

d
 t
o

 1
6

th
 (

E
n

g
lis

h
 l
o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
) 

in
 2

0
0

8
 f
ro

m
 a

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
2

0
8

th
 i
n

 2
0
0

6
, 
th

e
 4

th
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
 L

e
e

d
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
o

p
 

5
%

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u

th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

T
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 
fo

r 
C

u
lt
u
re

, 
M

e
d

ia
 a

n
d
 S

p
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 i
ts

 P
u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 a

 1
%

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 f
ig

u
re

. 
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

S
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 A

c
ti
v
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
C

C
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

19

Page 75



N
I
 1

1
9

: 
S

e
lf

 r
e
p

o
r
te

d
 m

e
a
s
u

r
e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

’s
 

o
v
e
r
a
ll

 h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll

-b
e
in

g
 

N
I 
1
1

9
: 

S
e
lf

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 m
e
n

a
s
u

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

's
 h

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll

-b
e
in

g

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

0
.0

0
%

2
0
.0

0
%

4
0
.0

0
%

6
0
.0

0
%

8
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

7
2
.6

0
%

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8

2
0
0

9
2
0
1
0

2
0
1

1

Targ
et:  

 
To im

prov
e the

 rela
tive 

scor
e as

 take
n fro

m th
e Pla

ce S
urve

y 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

a
y
 t
h

e
ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
 g

o
o
d

 o
r 

v
e

ry
 g

o
o

d
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
7

2
.6

%
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 c
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 a
n
d

 H
u

m
b
e

r 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 
y
e

a
r 

th
is

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
n

d
 t
a

rg
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 
b

e
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
fo

rt
h

c
o

m
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

Ia
n

 C
a

m
e
ro

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
B

re
n
d
a
 F

u
lla

rd
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
H

e
a

th
e

r 
T

h
o
m

s
o

n
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

20

Page 76



N
I
 1

2
2

: 
M

o
r
ta

li
ty

 f
r
o

m
 a

ll
 c

a
n

c
e
r
s
 a

t 
a
g

e
s
 

u
n

d
e
r
 7

5
 

N
I 
1
2

2
: 

C
a
n

c
e
r 

m
o

rt
a
li

ty

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

1
0
0

1
1
0

1
2
0

1
3
0

1
4
0

A
c
tu

a
l

1
3
5

1
3
3

1
2
4

1
2
1

1
2
2

1
2
2

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
1
3
1

1
2
9

1
2
4

1
1
9

1
1
4

1
1
2

1
1
0

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

Targ
et:  

 
To r

educ
e the

 rate
 of d

eath
s fro

m ca
ncer

 to 1
10 d

eath
s pe

r 100
,000

 by 2
011 

T
h

e
 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 f
o

rm
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

a
n
c
e
r 

L
o
c
a

lit
y
 G

ro
u

p
 w

o
rk

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

a
n

c
e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 R

e
fo

rm
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
m

o
v
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 c
a

re
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 s

ta
g

e
 a

t 
p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 h
e

a
lt
h

 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
  

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

a
n
c
e
r 

L
o

c
a
lit

y
 

G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

 c
a

n
c
e
r 

n
e

tw
o
rk

 a
n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
p

e
e

r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
h
e
lp

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
. 

F
u
tu

re
 w

o
rk

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
s
, 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 (

b
re

a
s
t 
c
e

rv
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 b
o
w

e
l)
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
iv

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
, 
w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h
o

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

Ia
n

 C
a

m
e
ro

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
J
o

n
 F

e
a

r 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
J
o

n
 F

e
a

r 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

21

Page 77



N
I
 5

3
: 

P
r
e
v
a
le

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

v
e
r
a
g

e
 o

f 

b
r
e
a
s
tf

e
e
d

in
g

N
I 
5
3

a
: 

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
b

re
a
s
tf

e
e

d
in

g
 a

t 
6
-8

 w
e
e
k
s
 f

ro
m

 b
ir

th

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

4
1
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
4

1
%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0

9
/1

0
2
0
1
0

/1
1

N
I 
5
3

b
: 

C
o

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
b

re
a

s
tf

e
e
d

in
g

 a
t 

6
-8

 w
e

e
k
s
 f

ro
m

 b
ir

th

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0

0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

8
9
.0

%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
8
5
.2

%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1

0
/1

1

Targ
et:  

 
To in

crea
se th

e pr
eval

ence
 and

 cov
erag

e of 
brea

stfee
ding

 at 6
-8 w

eeks
 from

 
birth

.
P

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
u
s
ta

in
in

g
 b

re
a
s
tf

e
e

d
in

g
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
s
e
n

ti
a

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 
a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
h

ild
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

. 
 O

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

fe
w

 y
e

a
rs

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 h
a

s
 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 b

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

ti
o
n
 b

u
t 
fr

o
m

 n
o
w

 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
c
o
n

ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 a

t 
6

 -
 8

 w
e

e
k
s
 a

n
d

 o
f 

c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
, 
th

a
t 
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
. 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 f
ir
s
t 
y
e

a
r 

th
a

t 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
e

in
g

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d

 
th

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a
rd

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

rd
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 
p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 t
a

rg
e
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 g
o
o

d
, 
a

s
 c

a
n

 b
e
e

n
 s

e
e

n
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

c
h

a
rt

s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
M

a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

22

Page 78



N
I
 5

5
: 

O
b

e
s
it

y
 i

n
 Y

r
 R

 p
r
im

a
r
y
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

c
h

il
d

r
e
n

N
I 
5
5

: 
O

b
e
s
it

y
 i

n
 Y

r 
R

 -
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

9
1
%

9
2
%

9
2
%

9
3
%

9
3
%

9
4
%

9
4
%

9
5
%

9
5
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
2
%

9
4
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
9
1
.8

8
%

9
1
.8

9
%

9
1
.9

0
%

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0

9
/1

0
2
0
1

0
/1

1

N
I 
5
5

: 
O

b
e
s
it

y
 i

n
 Y

r 
R

 -
 p

re
v
a
la

n
c
e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

2
%

4
%

6
%

8
%

1
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
%

8
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
9
.2

0
%

9
.1

9
%

9
.1

7
%

2
0
0

7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0

/1
1

Targ
et:  

 
To in

crea
se c

over
age 

of Y
r R c

hildr
en to

 91.9
% an

d to
 red

uce 
prev

alen
ce o

f 
obes

ity to
 9.17

% by
 201

1.  
C

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 O
b
e

s
it
y
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 l
in

k
e

d
 w

it
h

 e
a

rl
y
 o

n
s
e

t 
o

f 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

b
le

 d
is

e
a

s
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

ia
b
e

te
s
. 
 T

h
e

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 i
s
 t
o

 r
e
v
e

rs
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
in

g
 t
id

e
 o

f 
o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d

 
p
e
o
p
le

 b
e
in

g
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 
in

 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
, 
b
y
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 w

e
ig

h
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

im
 i
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
a
n

d
 o

b
e
s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 t
o

 2
0
0

0
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

It
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 r
e

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 o
b

e
s
e

 a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

N
C

M
P

).
 P

C
T

s
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 
to

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o

 w
e
ig

h
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

6
 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

. 
B

o
th

 c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 
p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 r
a
te

s
 a

re
 e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 C

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 a
c
a
d

e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
n
d

 a
 s

lig
h

t 
d
ro

p
 i
n
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
 b

u
t 
w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 
re

s
u

lt
s
 i
t 
is

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 
d
is

c
e
rn

 t
re

n
d
s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
M

a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

23

Page 79



N
I
 5

5
: 

O
b

e
s
it

y
 i

n
 Y

r
 6

 p
r
im

a
r
y
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

c
h

il
d

r
e
n

N
I 
5
6

: 
O

b
e
s
it

y
 i

n
 Y

r 
6
 -

 c
o

v
e
ra

g
e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

9
7
%

9
8
%

9
8
%

9
9
%

9
9
%

A
c
tu

a
l

9
8
%

9
9
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
9
8
.3

1
%

9
8
.3

3
%

9
8
.3

4
%

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0

/1
1

N
I 
5
6

: 
O

b
e
s
it

y
 i

n
 Y

r 
6
 -

 p
re

v
a
la

n
c

e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

1
7
%

1
8
%

1
8
%

1
9
%

1
9
%

2
0
%

2
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

1
8
%

1
9
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
1
7
.7

2
%

1
7
.7

0
%

1
7
.6

7
%

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2

0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0

9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

Targ
et:  

 
To in

crea
se c

over
age 

of Y
r 6 c

hildr
en to

 98.3
4% a

nd t
o re

duce
 pre

vale
nce 

of 
obes

ity to
 17.6

7% b
y 20

11.  
C

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 O
b
e

s
it
y
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 l
in

k
e

d
 w

it
h

 e
a

rl
y
 o

n
s
e

t 
o

f 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

b
le

 d
is

e
a

s
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

ia
b
e

te
s
. 
 T

h
e

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 i
s
 t
o

 r
e
v
e

rs
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
in

g
 t
id

e
 o

f 
o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d

 
p
e
o
p
le

 b
e
in

g
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 
in

 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o

n
, 
b
y
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

a
n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 w

e
ig

h
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

im
 i
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
a
n

d
 o

b
e
s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 t
o

 2
0
0

0
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

 I
t 

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

6
 w

h
o

 a
re

 o
b
e

s
e

 a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

h
ild

 M
e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

N
C

M
P

).
 P

C
T

's
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

to
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

 w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o

 w
e
ig

h
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

6
 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
s
 f
o

r 
a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 y

e
a

r 
2

0
0
7

/0
8

. 
O

b
e

s
it
y
 c

o
v
e
ra

g
e

 h
a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
0
6

/0
7

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

a
n
d

 h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e

d
e
d

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 p

re
v
a

le
n

c
e

 h
a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 f
a

ile
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 
ta

rg
e

t,
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 
w

it
h
 o

n
ly

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r'
s
 d

a
ta

 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 d

is
c
e
rn

 i
f 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 t
re

n
d
. 
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
M

a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

24

Page 80



N
I
 7

0
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 e

m
e
r
g

e
n

c
y
 h

o
s
p

it
a
l 

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 c

a
u

s
e
d

 b
y
 i

n
ju

r
y
 t

o
 c

h
il

d
r
e
n

 
N

I 
7
0

: 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 c

a
u

s
e
d

 b
y
 u

n
in

te
n

ti
o

n
a
l/

d
e
li

b
e
ra

te
 i
n

ju
ri

e
s
 t

o
 c

h
il

d
re

n

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

1
3

0

1
4

0

1
5

0

1
6

0

A
c
tu

a
l

1
4

3
.1

1
1
4
1
.1

7
1
5
5
.3

8

T
ra

je
c
to

ry

2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8

Targ
et:  

 
No t

arge
t has

 bee
n se

t for
 this

 indi
cato

r at 
this 

stag
e.    

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 v
ia

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
D

a
ta

 H
u
b
. 

A
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 2
0
0
9
. 

N
o
 f
u
tu

re
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
D

ia
n
e

 H
a

m
p

s
h

ir
e

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

25

Page 81



N
I
 5

0
: 

E
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

r
e
n

 

N
I 
5

0
: 

E
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

5
0
%

5
5
%

6
0
%

6
5
%

7
0
%

7
5
%

A
c
tu

a
l

6
4
.1

%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
6
4
.1

%
6

6
.6

%
6
9
.1

%
7

1
.6

%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9

/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1

/1
2

Targ
et:  

 
To im

prov
e pe

rform
ance

 from
 the 

2008
/09 b

asel
ine b

y 2.5
% pe

r yea
r, to

 201
2.    

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u

re
d

 u
s
in

g
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f
ro

m
 q

u
e

s
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 T
e

llU
s
 

S
u

rv
e

y
. 
T

h
e

 T
e

llU
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 i
n

 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Y

e
a

rs
 6

, 
8

 a
n

d
 1

0
 i
n

 m
a

in
ta

in
e
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 A

c
a
d

e
m

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
P

u
p

il 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
s
, 
in

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
0
8

/0
9

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
6

4
.1

%
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 u
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 b
a
s
e

lin
e

 a
n
d

 f
u

tu
re

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e
t 
a

t 
a

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
2
.5

%
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
tb

c
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

26

Page 82



N
I
 5

1
: 

E
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

 a
n

d
 

a
d

o
le

s
c
e
n

t 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s
 

N
I 
5
1

: 
E

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
C

A
M

H
S

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

048

1
2

1
6

R
e

s
u

lt
1
2

M
a

x
im

u
m

1
2

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0

9
/1

0
2

0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1

1
/1

2

Targ
et:  

 
To b

e ab
le to

 resp
ond

 pos
itive

ly in
 eac

h ar
ea o

f act
ivity

 cov
ered

 by a
 PCT

 leve
l 

annu
al su

rvey
.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 h

o
w

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
e
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 a

 s
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
P

C
T

s
. 
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
s
w

e
ri
n

g
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 a
lt
e

re
d

 w
h

ic
h

 a
ls

o
 m

e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 
re

s
u

lt
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 1

6
 t
o

 1
2

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 w

h
y
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 r
e
s
u

lt
 d

if
fe

rs
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t
h
re

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 r
e
s
u

lt
s
. 
R

e
s
u

lt
 1

2
 o

u
t 
o

f 
1

2
 

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
e

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

. 
T

h
is

 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
 b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
u

ll 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
C

A
M

H
S

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

w
it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
, 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t
o

 a
g

e
 a

n
d

 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
m

a
tu

ri
ty

 a
n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
M

a
rt

in
 F

o
rd

 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

27

Page 83



N
I
 1

1
3

: 
P

r
e
v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
c
h

la
m

y
d

ia
 i

n
 u

n
d

e
r
 

2
5

 y
e
a
r
 o

ld
s
 

C
h

la
m

y
d

ia
 S

c
re

e
n

in
g

P
e
ri

o
d

ic
 R

e
v

ie
w

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

0

5
0
0

1
0

0
0

1
5

0
0

2
0

0
0

2
5

0
0

3
0

0
0

05
0
0

0

1
0
0

0
0

1
5
0

0
0

2
0
0

0
0

2
5
0

0
0

3
0
0

0
0

O
th

e
r

5
0

0
6

7
7

9
1
5

5
9
5

5
4

4
7
4

0
8

9
3

7
8
6

6
0
2

7
3

1
7

8
9

9
4
2

S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 P

ro
g

9
6

9
1
0

0
0

7
8
3

7
9
5

1
2
5

7
2

0
6

7
1
8

4
2

2
0
4
8

1
2
1
9

1
1
3

4
1
6

3
6

1
8

4
4

T
ra

je
c
to

ry
1

3
4

5
1
4

9
5

1
6

2
0

1
1
9
5

1
3
0

0
2

1
2

0
2
2

2
0

2
2
7
0

1
9
7
0

2
0
2

0
2
3

2
0

2
3

2
0

Y
T

D
1

4
6

9
3
1

4
6

4
8

4
4

6
2
3
4

8
0
3

5
1
0
8

4
2

1
3

5
7
7

1
6
4
1

1
1

8
2
3

2
2
0
0

9
7

2
2

5
2
2

2
5

3
0
8

Y
T

D
 T

ra
j.

1
3
4

5
2
8

4
0

4
4

6
0

5
6
5
5

6
9
5

5
9

0
7

5
1
1

2
9
5

1
3
5
6

5
1

5
5
3

5
1
7
5

5
5

1
9

8
7
5

2
2

1
9
5

A
p
r-

0
8

M
a
y
-

0
8

J
u
n

-0
8

J
u
l-

0
8

A
u

g
-

0
8

S
e

p
-

0
8

O
c
t-

0
8

N
o

v
-

0
8

D
e

c
-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

9
M

a
r-

0
9

Targ
et:  

 
No t

arge
t set

 at th
is st

age.
  200

8/09
 per

form
ance

 to b
e us

ed a
s a b

asel
ine. 

  
T

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
llu

s
tr

a
te

d
 i
n
 

c
h

a
rt

 o
p

p
o
s
it
e

. 
 F

in
a

l,
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 d
a

ta
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 D

a
ta

 H
u

b
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

. 

T
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
tr

a
je

c
to

ry
 f
o

r 
2
0
0

8
/0

9
 w

a
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

Ia
n

 C
a

m
e
ro

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
V

ic
to

ri
a
 E

a
to

n
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

h
a

ro
n

 F
o

s
te

r 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

28

Page 84



N
I
 1

1
5

: 
S

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e
 m

is
u

s
e
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 

N
I 
1

1
5

: 
S

u
b

s
ta

n
c

e
 m

is
u

s
e
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

1
0
.0

%

1
1
.0

%

1
2
.0

%

1
3
.0

%

1
4
.0

%

1
5
.0

%

1
6
.0

%

A
c
tu

a
l

1
4

.8
%

T
a

rg
e
t

1
4

.8
%

1
4
.3

%
1
3
.8

%
1
3
.3

%

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0

1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2

Targ
et:  

 
To r

educ
e the

 num
ber 

of yo
ung

 peo
ple r

epor
ting

 freq
uent

 mis
use 

of 
drug

s/vo
latile

 sub
stan

ces 
or a

lcoh
ol.   

 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 T

e
llU

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 
T

h
e
 T

e
llU

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 i
n

 S
c
h
o

o
l 
Y

e
a

rs
 6

, 
8

 a
n

d
 1

0
 i
n

 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 A

c
a

d
e

m
ie

s
 a

n
d

 P
u

p
il 

R
e

fe
rr

a
l 
U

n
it
s
, 
in

 a
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

.

T
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

p
o
rt

in
g

 f
re

q
u

e
n

t 
m

is
u
s
e
 (

tw
ic

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
fo

u
r 

w
e
e
k
s
) 

o
f 
e
it
h
e
r 

d
ru

g
s
/v

o
la

ti
le

 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

r 
a

lc
o
h

o
l.
 

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
0
.5

%
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 f
iv

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o

 C
h

e
c
k
lis

ts
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
S

a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
tb

c
 

s

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

29

Page 85



N
I
 1

2
4

: 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 a

 l
o

n
g

 t
e
r
m

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

s
u

p
p

o
r
te

d
 t

o
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t
N

I 
1

2
4

: 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

2
0
%

4
0
%

6
0
%

8
0
%

1
0
0
%

A
c
tu

a
l

6
8
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0

1
0
/1

1

Targ
et:  

 
The 

perc
enta

ge o
f peo

ple w
ith a

 long
-term

 con
ditio

n wh
o re

ceiv
e en

oug
h 

supp
ort t

o he
lp m

anag
e the

ir lo
ng-t

erm
 hea

lth c
ond

ition
(s). 

T
h
e
 S

e
lf
 C

a
re

 O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

 i
n
 d

ra
ft
 f
o
rm

. 
 I
t 
m

a
k
e
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 L

o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
. 
 I
t 
is

 n
o
w

 o
u
t 
fo

r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 I
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t
h
re

e
 

th
e

m
a

ti
c
 a

re
a
s
 f
o

r 
a
c
ti
o

n
. 
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
c
o

lle
a

g
u
e

 t
o

 
d
is

c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 
 

T
h

e
 E

x
p

e
rt

 P
a

ti
e

n
t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 n
o
w

 h
a
s
 a

 f
u

ll 
a

n
n

u
a
l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
. 
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 o
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o

n
d
it
io

n
 

fo
c
u
s
s
e

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
o
rk

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 n

e
u

ro
lo

g
ic

a
l 
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
, 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
e
tc

).

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

in
e

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o

c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 a
n
d
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 

c
h

o
ic

e
s
, 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 t

ra
in

e
rs

 o
v
e
rl

a
p

s
 w

it
h

 w
id

e
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g

 
to

 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
. 
 F

u
ll 

re
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ra
in

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

v
e

r 
a

 3
 y

e
a

r 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e
n

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 P
C

T
 m

e
c
h
a
n

is
m

s
. 
 

T
h
e
 S

ta
y
w

e
ll 

S
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 

a
re

 f
u

lly
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
b

le
 t
o

 s
e

lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h

e
ir
 a

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
a

k
e

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

e
o

d
is

 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 b
a

s
e
d

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 a

s
 a

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 s

it
e

 
fo

r 
te

s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
. 
  

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

Ia
n

 C
a

m
e
ro

n
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
B

re
n
d
a
 F

u
lla

rd
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
J
u
d
y
 C

a
rr

iv
ic

k
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

30

Page 86



N
I
 1

2
9

: 
E
n

d
 o

f 
li

fe
 c

a
r
e
 –

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 c

a
r
e
 

e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 c
h

o
o

s
e
 t

o
 d

ie
 a

t 
h

o
m

e

N
I 
1

2
9

: 
E

n
d

 o
f 

li
fe

 c
a
re

: 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
d

e
a

th
s

 t
h

a
t 

o
c

c
u

r 
a

t 
h

o
m

e

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

A
c
tu

a
l

1
9
.2

1
%

T
ra

je
c
to

ry

2
0
0

7
/0

8
2

0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

Targ
et:  

 
The 

perc
enta

ge o
f peo

ple t
hat d

ie at
 hom

e sh
ould

 rise
 ove

r tim
e.  N

o sp
ecifi

c 
targ

et ha
s be

en s
et at

 this
 stag

e. 
D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 v

ia
 O

N
S

. 
 N

o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
a
t 
th

is
 

s
ta

g
e
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 r
e

p
o
rt

s
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

J
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
C

a
ro

l 
C

o
c
h
ra

n
e

 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
D

ia
n
e
 B

o
y
n
e
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

31

Page 87



N
I
 1

3
4

: 
N

u
m

b
e
r
 o

f 
e
m

e
r
g

e
n

c
y
 b

e
d

 d
a
y
s
 

p
e
r
 h

e
a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

Targ
et:  

 
The 

rate
 of e

mer
genc

y be
d da

ys p
er h

ead 
of p

opu
latio

n sh
ould

 red
uce 

over
 

time
.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
o
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
t 
is

 p
re

s
e
n

tl
y
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

D
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
is

s
u
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o
 C

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

tb
c
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
tb

c
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
tb

c
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

32

Page 88



N
I
 1

4
9

: 
A

d
u

lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 s
e
c
o

n
d

a
r
y
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s
 i

n
 s

e
tt

le
d

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

Targ
et:  

 
The 

perc
enta

ge o
f peo

ple r
ecei

ving
 sec

ond
ary m

enta
l hea

lth s
ervic

es a
nd w

ho 
are i

n se
ttled

 acc
omm

odat
ion s

hou
ld ri

se. 

N
I
 1

5
0

: 
A

d
u

lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 s
e
c
o

n
d

a
r
y
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e
a
lt

h
 s

e
r
v
ic

e
s
 i

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t

Targ
et:  

 
The 

perc
enta

ge o
f peo

ple r
ecei

ving
 sec

ond
ary m

enta
l hea

lth s
ervic

es a
nd w

ho 
are i

n em
ploy

men
t at t

he ti
me o

f the
ir las

t ass
essm

ent s
hou

ld ri
se. 

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 M

in
im

u
m

 D
a
ta

 
S

e
t.
  
N

o
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
t 
a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 
 D

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

D
a

ta
 H

u
b

 d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r.
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 n
a
rr

a
ti
v
e
. 
 

O
v
e
ra

ll 
T

ra
ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 
R

a
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

N
o

 C
h

e
c
k
lis

ts
 

L
e
a
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

  
 

L
e

e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t/

N
H

S
L

 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 D
ir

e
c

to
r:

  
 

tb
c
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
tb

c
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
L

e
a
d

: 
 

 
tb

c
 

L
C

C
/N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 J

o
in

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

33

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date: 28 July 2009 
 
Subject: Recommendation Tracking 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 In December 2006, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to adopt a new, 

more formal system of recommendation tracking, to ensure that scrutiny 
recommendations were more rigorously followed through. 

 
1.2 As a result, each Scrutiny Board now receives a quarterly report on any 

recommendations from previous inquiries which have not yet been completed.  This 
allows the Scrutiny Board to monitor progress and identify completed 
recommendations; those progressing to plan; and those where there is either an 
obstacle or progress is not adequate. The Scrutiny Board will then be able to take 
further action as appropriate. 

 
1.4 A standard set of criteria has been produced, to enable the board to assess progress. 

These are presented in the form of a flow chart at Appendix 1. The questions should 
help the Scrutiny Board to determine whether a recommendation has been completed 
and identify any further action required. 

 
1.5 For each outstanding recommendation, a progress update is provided. In some cases 

there will be several updates, as the Scrutiny Board has monitored progress over a 
period of time. 

 
1.6 The Scrutiny Board is asked to: 

• Consider the updates provided; 

• Determine whether or not progress is satisfactory; 

• Determine whether or not any additional work in required.  
 
1.7 In deciding whether to undertake any further work, members will need to consider the 

balance of the board’s work programme. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 

Tel: 247 4707 
 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 91



1.8 In accordance with the wishes of the chair, no officers have been invited to attend this 
meeting to discuss the progress made against recommendations.  However, a full 
written response will be requested in relation to any issues raised by the Scrutiny 
Board. 

 
2.0  Recommendations 
 
2.1 Members are asked to consider the progress updates provided against the Scrutiny 

Board’s previous recommendations not yet completed (outlined in Appendix 2), and:  
 

2.1.1 Agree those recommendations which no longer require monitoring; 
 

2.1.2 Identify any recommendations where progress is unsatisfactory and determine 
any action the Scrutiny Board wishes to take as a result. 

 
3.0 Background Papers 
 

None 

Page 92



APPENDIX 1

No Yes

1 - Stop 
monitoring

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

2 - Achieved 

Is there an 

obstacle?

Is this recommendation still relevant?

Recommendation tracking flowchart and classifications:

Questions to be Considered by Scrutiny Boards

5 - Not achieved 
(progress made not 

acceptable. Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action and 

continue monitoring)

Has the recommendation been 

achieved?

3 - not achieved 
(obstacle). Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action.

Is progress 

acceptable?

4 - Not 
achieved 

(Progress 

made 

acceptable. 

Continue 

monitoring.)

6 - Not for review this 
session

Has the set 

timescale 

passed?

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 
 

Community Development – Report published July 2007: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

2 We recommend that the Local Strategic 
Partnership proactively challenges the 
level of commitment and investment 
made from all partners towards 
community development and develops 
an action plan aimed at further 
embedding community development 
values and principles across the 
partnership. 

March 2008 position 
The Leeds Initiative Programme Manager for Harmonious Communities started 
in post in January 2008 and is discussing with organisations and different 
departments about her future work programme. This will include addressing the 
embedding of community development values and principles across the 
partnership. 
 

March 2009 position 
The Leeds Initiative is setting up a new Harmonious Communities strategy and 
development group with a workshop on 11th February 2009.  
 

The community development issues will be discussed as part of the broader 
work on community engagement and empowerment. At the present time, this is 
being considered by several different individuals, departments and groups and 
we want to bring this together and be clear about how we want to take it 
forward in partnership. The White Paper Communities in Control (CLG 2008) 
supports work to enhance community development skills among a range of 
frontline professionals and the increased focus on community engagement and 
empowerment.  
 

In terms of investment, the VCF sector partnership group has taken this 
forward as part of the response to the research commissioned by Leeds 
Initiative on the sustainability of the VCF sector in Leeds. This group has a 
resources task group which is working on this. The current economic situation 
is having a detrimental effect on funding and resources are reduced. Funding 
for a post based within Leeds Voice was identified by the Resources Group to 
work with commissioners and VCF sector on future commissioning and 
delivery. 
 

The new Health and Wellbeing Plan identifies engagement and community 
development as a specific strand and the PCT is making explicit and specific 
the community development contribution expected of each VCF sector partner 
it funds during this commissioning period (for SLA’s April 09 up to 3 years) 
 

 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

5



APPENDIX 2 
 

Community Development – Report published July 2007: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

 
July 2009 update 
 
The VCFS Partnership Group chaired by Sandie Keene was established by the 
Narrowing the Gap Board to deliver against the LAA National Indicator 7 – a 
environment for a thriving third sector. It has established task groups to look at 
both resourcing issues and community engagement. The resources task group 
has established the Supporting Commissioning Links scheme and 
commissioned Leeds Voice and Renew to work in partnership with service 
managers to deliver a 2 year programme to enable and support third sector 
organisations to access opportunities to deliver public sector commissioned 
services and activities.   
 
The VCFS Partnership Group has agreed terms of reference for a community 
engagement task group that will meet at the end of August to undertake the 
work identified by the City and Regional Partnerships Scrutiny Board. It will  
identify opportunities and initiatives that will further improve and enhance links 
with local VCFS organisations to support the delivery of the Area Committee’s 
work in localities and will map the available resource and expertise within the 
sector to improve the targeting and engagement of "hard to reach" groups. It 
will also seek to map the existing strategic groups with a ‘community 
engagement’ remit groups and their activities to avoid duplication and silo 
approaches and develop and recommend more sustainable ways of working.   
 
The Leeds Initiative Harmonious Communities partnership has held its first 
meeting and agreed to meet with the community engagement subgroup of the 
VCF sector Partnership. 
 
NHS Leeds has made explicit a number of community development outcomes 
within CVFS SLA’s.  These include: Increased number of people participating 
in or engaging with local community activities;  Increase in the size and range 
of social networks for local people;  Equality of access to services for all local 

P
a
g
e
 9

6



APPENDIX 2 
 

Community Development – Report published July 2007: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

people;  Increased levels of satisfaction of service users with the delivery and 
outcomes of the service;  Increased levels of involvement of service users in 
the design, delivery, management, review and development of services;  
Improvement in productive and co-operative working with other partners – 
indicators for this outcome include ‘Input to Local Forum/planning sessions’ 
and ‘Input to Local Delivery Plans (Area Committee, through Area 
Management)’ 
 
These outcomes have been commissioned from approx 20 agencies.  The 
agencies all work in neighbourhoods in worst 10% nationally (using IMD) and 
with specific vulnerable groups eg gypsies and travellers, South Asian 
communities, women fleeing violence. 
 
 

4 That the Healthy Leeds Partnership 
champions the Leeds Community 
Health Development Network (CHDN) 
and ensures that it provides 
opportunities for community 
development projects to share best 
practice, celebrate achievements and 
actively encourage joint working 
initiatives across the city. 
 

The Network should also develop a 
themed training programme based on 
the needs of community development 
workers and encourage broader 
education and understanding of 
community development across the 
city. 

March 2008 position 
The Healthy Leeds Partnership values the Community Development Network 
and, in relation to the new partnership arrangements, is examining where it 
would need to be placed to have the most influence.  
 

The Community Health Development Network has identified the need to 
develop training as part of its future work programme. The future of the CHDN 
is integral to the development of accredited training for current CD workers as 
well as the development of induction plans for new workers. The majority of CD 
work is delivered by CVFS partners, and the aim is to improve the skills and 
competence of those workers.  This development work needs to be supported 
through the CHDN, which would ensure local staff became competent using 
the National Competency Standards for CD. 
 
March 2009 position 
The new partnership structures for health and wellbeing came into place last 
year with a smaller Joint Strategic Commissioning Board as well as the Healthy 
Leeds Partnership. Workshops in March are looking to develop the locality 
partnerships.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

7



APPENDIX 2 
 

Community Development – Report published July 2007: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 
 

Community health development relates most to the Promoting Health and 
Wellbeing Commissioning Sub-group and they are leading on developing a 
partnership strategy and joint commissioning issues. 
 

A celebration event is planned for 18th March on the healthy living grants which 
support the activities of many community and voluntary sector groups.   
 

The Community Health Development Network is still meeting and focussing on 
key training issues.  
 
July 2009 update 
 
Healthy Leeds partners are not currently visibly championing the Network and, 
apart from NHS Leeds’s contribution, there has been no funding or other 
resources from partners to support the work.  The network has been supported 
and continued by funding from within Public Health, NHS Leeds, and the 
commitment of the Task Group, which includes staff from NHS Leeds, VCF 
sector and Healthy Leeds. 
 
In terms of training, Leeds University is taking forward a needs analysis relating 
to CD; and we have identified and are publicising courses available through 
local providers.  Training offered through the Network failed to attract staff to 
attend and would have had difficulties accrediting learning in a useful way.  
Leeds is extremely well provided with opportunities for training at the University 
of Leeds, Leeds Metropolitan University and Bradford College;  commissioners 
need to ensure agencies are funded with sufficient allowance for staff 
development within Full Cost Recovery  Service Level Agreement’s, rather 
than expecting VCF sector partners to meet the need for training themselves.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 That the Healthy Leeds Partnership 
carries out an evaluation of the 
Community Health Development 

March 2008 position 
The current and potential contribution of the network is recognised at senior 
level by the Chief Executive of the PCT and the Director of Adult Social 

 
 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

8



APPENDIX 2 
 

Community Development – Report published July 2007: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

Network during its first year and 
explores joint funding opportunities to 
maintain the sustainability of the 
Network in the long term. The results of 
this evaluation will be reported back to 
the Scrutiny Board in April 2008. 

Services. In the previous response we agreed that evaluation of the 
Community Health Development Network was important but that it would be 
too early to do this after its first year. We can give the Scrutiny Board an 
update on its first year’s activity and we are exploring mechanisms to do an 
independent evaluation at a later date.  
 

A meeting of key officers and Community Health Development Network 
representatives was convened in January to address the sustainability of the 
Network. From this a small task group, involving the PCT, voluntary sector and 
the Leeds Initiative was set up to develop a proposal to secure resources to 
continue to develop and maintain the Network. The PCT has secured £25K 
funding for a part time post to support the CHDN and work on the delivery of 
the recommendations. In the meantime Leeds VOICE is providing interim 
support for the network.   
 
March 2009 position 
The part-time development post started in May 2008 but there have been 
problems with continuity. The independent evaluation of the Community Health 
Development Network is being carried out by Steve Skinner Associates. It 
started in September/October 2008 and the final report is due in March 09. A 
meeting of the task group will discuss this and make recommendations on the 
next steps. 
 
 
July 2009 update 
 
An independent evaluation was undertaken in 08/09 on the delivery of the 
Community Health Development Network, including work on training.  As a 
result of this evaluation, the Task Group met in April and recommended two 
main activities for 09/10: 
   

• the delivery of a CHDN leadership programme, to strengthen 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 9

9



APPENDIX 2 
 

Community Development – Report published July 2007: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

partnership and leadership for CHD work in Leeds – this is being 
delivered October 09 to March 10, externally facilitated and will be 
internally evaluated.   

• the delivery of two events for CHDN frontline staff which are being 
planned and co-ordinated by staff from NHS Leeds, Touchstone and 
Health for All.  Leeds Voice is the commissioned agency to administer 
these activities.   

 
Investment in the Network from NHS Leeds has been reduced from 08/09 
levels, from 40k to 25k, but a Service Level Agreement has been agreed with 
Voice for 3 years to for this investment to continue at this level. There is still no 
joint funding for this work. 
 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
0



Localisation – Statement published May 2008: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 
 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

1 That : 

• a thematic group 
be developed for 
health and 
wellbeing, 
including adult 
social care, in 
each of the three 
new areas  

• the thematic 
groups work 
with the area 
committees to 
discuss and 
agree the nature 
and regularity of 
their dialogue in 
the future 

 

September 2008 position 
Response from Leeds Primary Care Trust (PCT) 
The Primary Care Trust (PCT) and Adult Social Care support this recommendation and are working 
together to identify the most effective way to ensure implementation on a sustainable basis.  This 
work includes gaining a better understanding of how other large urban areas work on a locality 
basis.  A visit to Nottingham is planned for September 2008. The PCT and Adult Social Care 
recognise the need for dedicated officer time for each of the three new areas.  This will ensure 
effective coordination and link the health and wellbeing programme to the officer coordination 
groups, area committees, local neighbourhoods and the Healthy Leeds Partnership. Proposals are 
being developed and will be presented to the Scrutiny Board by the year end. 
 

Response from Adult Social Services 
Area Management is represented on the Council's Strategic Leadership Team for Health and 
Wellbeing - providing a direct link between citywide and area concerns. 
Development of a locality focus for health and wellbeing is included in the draft Adult Social Care 
service plan, as are plans to increase capacity to enable improved co-ordination around Health and 
Wellbeing for area committees and the development of local thematic groups. 
 

March 2009 position 
Response from NHS Leeds 
The Public Health team at NHS Leeds is working closely with the Leeds Initiative to develop local 
partnership working arrangements to deliver the health and wellbeing improvement priorities in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan and to improve the links between the local and the city wide work. Workshops 
will take place during March in three areas of the city with a range of local stakeholders from 
different agencies in order to shape future local partnership arrangements. These will be informed 
by the emerging Leeds Health and Wellbeing Plan 2009-12. Plans are in place to appoint to three 
Locality Health and Wellbeing posts in order to support these arrangements.  Work is also 
progressing to co-ordinate the PCTs response to locality partnerships and to develop a PCT 
governance framework in relation to external partnerships. 
 

introduction of these partnerships they will be supported in part by the joint funded appointment of 
three Locality Enablers for Health and Wellbeing. 
 

 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



Localisation – Statement published May 2008: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 
 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

  Response from Adult Social Services 
Area Managers have been consulted about how best the forthcoming Health and Wellbeing Theme 
Plan can link to areas and inform local planning.   Three introductory area workshops are being 
held in mid March 2009 focusing on each area, including a discussion of how best to set up a 
locality thematic group / partnership for health and wellbeing.  It is proposed that with the 
 
July 2009 update 
 
NHS Leeds and Adult Social Care have been working with the Leeds Initiative to progress the 
development of a thematic group for health and wellbeing, including adult social care, in each of 
the three areas. 
 
Workshops were held at the end of March 2009 to engage a wide range of stakeholders in shaping 
the development of locality health and wellbeing partnerships arrangements. These were supported 
by local Councillors and LCC Area Managers. Approximately 50 people attended each workshop, 
from different sections of NHS Leeds and the Council, the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector 
and Practice Based Commissioning consortia. These workshops generated enthusiasm amongst 
stakeholders for the development of three thematic groups and gave  key pointers in relation to the 
types of systems and structures that stakeholders felt both help and hinder partnership working, 
issues to consider around health evidence, involvement, linkages, delivering improvement locally, 
communication, and wider influences on health. 
 
A paper was taken to the Healthy Leeds Joint Strategic Commissioning Board in May proposing the 
establishment of three locality health and wellbeing theme groups, which was endorsed. 
 
A planning group has since met to consolidate the outputs from the workshops and agree the key 
actions for taking this development forward. 
 
Meetings of an initial core health and wellbeing group for each of the three areas have been 
convened for July 2009. These core groups will consist of representatives from NHS Leeds, Adult 
Social Care, LCC Officers, Councillors, the VCFS, PBC, and Children’s Services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

0
2



Localisation – Statement published May 2008: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 
 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

  The purpose of the group is to inform the production of consistent Terms of Reference across the 
three areas through the development of detailed proposals for the purpose and functioning of the 
groups. These proposals will result from discussions on areas such as the overall purpose and 
benefits of the partnerships, what they will deliver in their first year, who needs to be involved, how 
the group will operate in practical terms, links to other local partnerships, communication, 
involvement and engagement mechanisms, and governance (including accountability structures, 
identification and management of risks, reporting, and performance management in relation to the 
Health and Wellbeing Theme Plan). 
 
It is envisaged that the first meetings of the full groups will take place in the early autumn.  A 
recruitment process is in progress to appoint three jointly funded Locality Health Improvement 
Managers to support Locality partnership working. They will be a key link between the thematic 
groups and the Area Committees and will facilitate appropriate dialogue. 
 

  

2 That the results of 
the PCT’s review of 
minor surgery in 
Leeds be reported 
to this scrutiny 
board at the earliest 
opportunity. 
 

September 2008 position 
The PCT has concluded a review of current minor surgery facilities in primary care which shows 
areas of under utilisation. The PCT has set goals for increasing this uptake. We have completed a 
service specification for minor surgery to further encourage the use of local facilities.  
Discussions are now taking place with Practice Based Commissioners about how we can work with 
providers to increase service options and choice for patients locally. We are also working with 
Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT) to ensure that any new capacity will deliver faster 
access to services for patients (18 weeks). 
 

March 2009 position 
NHS Leeds is continuing to work with PBC and commissioners about how we can work with 
providers to increase service options and choice for patients 
 
July 2009 update 
 
NHS Leeds continues to review the provision of minor surgery in facilities across NHS Leeds.   
 
 
 
 

 
 

 P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



Localisation – Statement published May 2008: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 
 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

3 That Leeds PCT 
provides quarterly 
reports to this 
Board during 
2008/9 regarding 
the development of 
services in the new 
LIFT financed 
health centres in 
Leeds. 
 

September 2008 position 
Since the localisation report was published the PCT has finalised arrangements for a number of 
additional clinical services to be either relocated or provide clinical sessions in LIFT buildings.  The 
PCT is keen to ensure the Scrutiny Board is kept up-to-date on these developments.  Due to the 
length of time it takes to implement changes of this nature a further report to the Board is proposed 
in six months’ time.  
 

March 2009 position 
Over the last six months a number of new services have been introduced into the PCT’s existing 
LIFT buildings.  This has focussed mainly on the under-utilised space in the south of the city which 
has seen the National Artificial Eye Service relocate to Parkside Community Health Centre from 
unsuitable accommodation in Hunslet.  Parkside is also being used as a team base for the newly 
established Family Nurse Partnership Project, which is a clinical service providing intensive support 
to families, and an admin base for the Referral Management Service.  At Armley Moor Health 
Centre a new twilight community nursing service has been set up and the Looked After Children 
nurses’ team expanded.  In January, Harrogate and District Foundation Trust began providing 
dermatology outpatient clinics at Wetherby Health Centre.   
 
July 2009 update 
 
The newly created outpatient service at Wetherby Health Centre (reported in March) has increased 
the range of specialities being provided; they now include paediatrics, vascular, gastroenterology 
and neurology.  MSK and Rehabilitation Services have been able to expand their service in both 
East Leeds and Woodhouse Community Health Centres. 
 
In May the Leeds New Entrant TB Screening Service moved from Beeston Hill to larger 
accommodation within Parkside Community Health Centre.  This move has provided the service 
with dedicated space enabling it to increase its clinical capacity as well as offering patients 
improved accessibility. 
 

 
 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
4



Localisation – Statement published May 2008: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 
 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

12 That progress with 
the development of 
Practice Based 
Commissioning in 
Leeds, particularly 
the arrangements for 

• management 
support for the 
PBC Forum 

• patient and 
public 
involvement, and 

• the continuing 
discussions 
between Health 
and Adult Social 
Care colleagues 
of joint 
opportunities 
presented by 
PBC 

are monitored by this 
Scrutiny Board in 
2008/9. 
 

September 2008 position 
Recent reconfiguration of the Practice Based Commissioning (PBC) Consortia in Leeds is 
outlined below: 
 

Consortia  No. of practices Population 

H3+  31  276496 

Leodis Healthcare  30  205093 

North East Consortium  13  116277 

Leeds Commissioning Collaborative  14  49828 

The Wetherby & District Group  5  33155 

Church Street Group  6  14964 

   

Unaligned Practices  14  98265 
 

The two largest consortia have fulfilled the requirements of “earned autonomy”, demonstrating 
that they have robust governance and risk management arrangements in place, and have 
achieved against previous years’ plans. 
 

The PBC Governance Committee has approved ambitious strategic and operational plans for five 
of the consortia, and it is anticipated that remaining plans will be approved in September 2008. 
All PBC plans demonstrate a commitment to national and local priorities, to patient and public 
involvement and joint working with local authority and third sector organisations. 
 

We anticipate that the number of unaligned practices will reduce as discussions are still taking 
place between some of these practices and the established PBC consortia.  At least seven 
practices are implementing PBC as individual practices this year, and only two practices in the 
city have declined to participate in PBC at this stage. 
 

Plans are being developed in partnership with the PBC Forum to establish a Commissioning 
Executive to ensure strategic connections between different strands of PCT commissioning and 
PBC.  It is anticipated that the new arrangements will be in place in shadow form from October 
2008. 
 

The PCT has reviewed the management support for PBC. The dedicated PBC team provides 
direct support to PBC consortia and practices and facilitates support from other PCT 
departments, such as Finance, Information, Public Health, Patient and Public Involvement (PPI), 
and Commissioning. The PCT has invested in a dedicated PBC information system which 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



Localisation – Statement published May 2008: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 
 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

enables activity and financial information to be made available to support commissioning. 
 

PBC plans are required to describe arrangements for patient and public involvement in the 
development of commissioning plans and redesign proposals. All PBC consortia have completed 
a baseline audit of current PPI arrangements, and the PCT is providing support to develop more 
Patient Participation Groups at practice and consortium level. Some consortia have appointed or 
are currently appointing lay members to their Boards. The PCT’s PPI team supports the 
development of focus groups to inform the redesign of services. The Patient Advisory Group, with 
a wide membership from patient groups and community and voluntary organisations in Leeds, 
reviews all PBC proposals from a patient and public experience perspective and makes 
recommendations to the PBC Governance Committee. 
 

Significant improvements in services have already been achieved through PBC – for example, 
practice based diagnostic services, admissions avoidance schemes, enhanced care for people in 
care homes, genital warts service for the student population, improvements to 18 week pathways 
– and in 2007/08 almost £2 million was freed up for reinvestment in local services. 
 

As part of the establishment of partnership arrangements between the PCT and the Local 
Authority, PBC Consortia have been engaged in how they can make effective links with the Local 
Authority through partnerships at locality level. Practice based commissioners have been 
encouraged to establish links with Area Committees and agree areas of joint working on the 
delivery of Local Area Agreement priorities. 
 

March 2009 position 
Changes have taken place with the re-configuration of some PBC Consortia and there are now 
five PBC Consortia with 14 Practices remaining independent.  The most significant change has 
been the development of Calibre (former NE Consortium) with the former Wetherby Group 
joining, together with three Practices in the west area of the city.   
 

Nationally, there is a drive to reinvigorate practice based commissioning and currently work is 
being undertaken, in partnership with practice based commissioners, to build upon the local 
successes in Leeds to date.  This includes the development of a local incentive scheme to reflect 
the local priorities for 2009/2010.   
 

Year end reviews will take place in late spring to assess achievement again plans during 
2008/2009. 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
6



Localisation – Statement published May 2008: Last update received March 2009 (considered in April 2009) 
 

Key 

1 – stop monitoring 3 – not achieved (obstacle) 5 – not achieved (progress made not acceptable) 

2 – Achieved 4 – not achieved (progress made acceptable) 6 – not for review this session 

 

 Recommendation Where we are up to  Stage Complete 

 
July 2009 update 
 
The 2009/2010 Clinical Commissioning Local Enhanced Service (LES) has been implemented to 
further progress the development of practice based commissioning within the health economy.     
Clinical engagement is core to the LES and provides incentive funding for primary care 
practitioners to undertake peer review of clinical care pathways and referrals and provide clinical 
input in the health economy through clinical data validation.    
 
 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



P
a
g
e
 1

0
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Health) 
 
Date: 28 July 2009 
 
Subject: Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present an outline work programme for the Board to 

consider, amend and agree as appropriate. 
 
 
2.0 Introduction 
 

2.1 At its meeting on 30 June 2009, the Board received a number of inputs to help 
members consider the Board’s priorities during the current municipal year.  This 
included specific inputs from: 

 

• Executive Board Member for Adult Health and Social Care 

• Deputy Director (Adult Social Services) 

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT) 

• Leeds Partnerships Foundation Trust (LPFT) 
 
2.2 A number of potential areas were identified by members of the Board, and it was 

agreed that the Principal Scrutiny Adviser, in consultation with the Chair, present an 
outline work programme for consideration at the July meeting.   

 
2.3 The main issues discussed/ agreed at the meeting on 30 June 2009 were: 
 

• Quarterly progress updates from NHS partners on the identified key issues and 
priorities, including updated information on proposed services changes, current 
consultations and implementation of previously agreed service changes/ 
developments. 

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Steven Courtney 
 

Tel: 247 4707 
 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 109



• To consider Renal Services (Dialysis) Provision at Leeds General Infirmary (LGI). 

• To consider alcohol and its related harm, including the role of the Authority in: 
o Promoting sensible and responsible alcohol consumption; 
o Highlighting the associated health implications, especially for those living in the 

most deprived areas of the city. 

• Health priorities within the Council’s decision-making processes.  

• To consider the health of young people across a range of issues, including: 
o Alcohol consumption; 
o Obesity and levels of physical activity; 
o Smoking; 
o Sexual health and teenage pregnancies; 

 
 
3.0 Work programme 
 
3.1 An outline work programme that reflects those areas identified above in paragraph 

2.3, is presented at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Draft terms of reference for the Boards proposed inquiry into alcohol related harm 

are presented at Appendix 2.  An associated Scrutiny Inquiry Selection Criteria pro-
forma is attached at Appendix 3. 

 
3.3 It should be recognised that the Board’s work programme is ‘live’.  As such, 

Appendix 1 should be considered as an evolving document that may change over 
time to reflect any in-year change in priorities and/or emerging issues over the 
course of the year. 

 
 
4.0 Recommendations 
 

4.1 Members are asked to; 
 

(i) Consider the outline work programme attached at Appendix 1 and agree / 
amend as appropriate: 

(ii) Consider the draft terms of reference in relation to the proposed inquiry into 
reducing alcohol related harm (Appendix 2) and the associated inquiry selection 
criteria pro-forma (Appendix 3) 

(iii) Consider the information provided in relation to the proposed GP-led Health 
Centre, and in particular the consultation analysis provided. 

(iv) Agree the revised terms of reference for the inquiry into Improving Sexual 
Health among Young People. 

 
5.0 Background Documents 
 

None 
 

 

 
 

Page 110



APPENDIX 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 28 July 2009 

Renal Services 

To consider current proposals from Leeds 
Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust (LTHT) 
regarding the provision of dialysis at Leeds 
General Infirmary (LGI). 

Input from a range of stakeholders, 
including: 

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust 

• Kidney Patients Association 

RP/DP 

Renal Patient Transport 
To consider the current performance of the 
renal patient transport service. 

 PM 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 4 performance reports  PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

    

 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



APPENDIX 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Meeting date – 22 September 2009 

Update on local NHS 
priorities 

To consider an update on the previously 
identified priorities for each local NHS 
Trust. 

Updates from:  

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation 
Trust  

PM 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 1 performance reports  PM 

KPMG Health Inequalities 
Report 

To consider the KPMG report and its 
associated action plan. 

Due to be considered by Corporate 
Governance and Audit Committee on 29 
July 2009. 

 

Improving Young Peoples 
Sexual Health 

To consider the initial response to the 
Boards inquiry published in April 2009. 

 RP 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
2



APPENDIX 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Meeting date – 20 October 2009 

Scrutiny Inquiry – Alcohol 
related harm 

To consider evidence relevant to the 
Board’s inquiry 

 RP/DP 

    

Meeting date – 24 November 2009 

Scrutiny Inquiry – Alcohol 
related harm 

To consider evidence relevant to the 
Board’s inquiry 

 RP/DP 

    

Meeting date – 15 December 2009 

Update on local NHS 
priorities 

To consider an update on the previously 
identified priorities for each local NHS 
Trust. 

Updates from:  

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation 
Trust  

PM 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 2 performance reports  PM 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



APPENDIX 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

Health Scrutiny – 
Department of Health 
Guidance 

To receive and consider revised guidance 
associated with health scrutiny and any 
implications for local practice. 

Guidance due to be published in 
November 2009 

B 

Meeting date – 19 January 2010 

Scrutiny Inquiry – Alcohol 
related harm 

To consider evidence relevant to the 
Board’s inquiry 

 RP/DP 

    

Meeting date – 16 February 2010 

Young Peoples Health 
To consider a range of health issues (as 
they relate to young people) and the role of 
the Council and its partners.   

 B/RP 

    

    

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
4



APPENDIX 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Meeting date – 16 March 2010 

Update on local NHS 
priorities 

To consider an update on the previously 
identified priorities for each local NHS 
Trust. 

Updates from:  

• NHS Leeds 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Leeds Partnerships NHS Foundation 
Trust  

PM 

Quarterly Accountability 
Reports 

To receive quarter 3 performance reports  PM 

Annual Health Check 

To receive and consider the local NHS 
Trusts self assessment against the 24 
“core standards” set by Government under 
the domains: 

• Safety; 

• Clinical and Cost Effectiveness;  

• Governance; 

• Patient Focus; 

• Accessible and Responsive Care; 

• Care Environment and Amenities; and, 

• Public Health 

Precise timing and scope to be confirmed PM 

Recommendation 
Tracking 

To monitor progress against the 
recommendations agreed following 
previous Scrutiny Board inquiries. 

 MSR 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
5



APPENDIX 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Meeting date – 27 April 2010 

Annual Report 
To agree the Board’s contribution to the 
annual scrutiny report 

  

    

P
a
g
e
 1

1
6



APPENDIX 1 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Working Groups (TBC) 

Working group Membership Progress update Dates 

    

    

    P
a
g
e
 1

1
7



 
Scrutiny Board (Health)  
Work Programme 2008/09  

 

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items 

Item Description Notes 

Specialised commissioning 
arrangements 

To consider the current arrangements for 
specialised commissioning within the 
region and the role of scrutiny. 

The planned Department of Health (DoH) 
consultation on developing / strengthening 
Health Scrutiny may have an impact. 

Hospital Discharges 

To consider a follow up report on 
progress against the recommendations 
(i.e. 15, 16 and 17) detailed in the 
Independence, Wellbeing and Choice 
inspection report 

Consider report in September/ October 
2009. 

Out of Area Treatments (Mental 
Health) 

To consider the report prepared by Leeds 
Hospital Alert and the response from 
LPFT. 

Leeds Hospital Alert report received 1 July 
2009.  Response from LPFT requested on 
1 July 2009. 

Health priorities within the Council’s 
decision-making processes 

To consider current arrangements for 
integrating health and wellbeing 
considerations within the Council’s 
decision=making process. 

Identified in June 2009 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
8



APPENDIX 2 
 

Scrutiny Board (Health)  
 

Inquiry into the role of the Council and its partners in  
reducing alcohol related harm 

 
Draft Terms of reference 

 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 The negative impacts associated with high levels of alcohol consumption have 
a national profile across the country, often receiving frequent attention from 
the national and local media.  

 
1.2 Alcohol related harm can be measured in many ways, including short, medium 

and long-term health concerns; levels of crime, disorder and anti-social 
behaviour; and general economic loss. 

 
1.3 In 2004, the number of deaths linked to alcohol across the Yorkshire and 

Humber region rose by more that 46% – the largest rise in the country. Alcohol 
consumption in Leeds is a particular concern with an estimated 155,000 adults 
drinking above the ‘safe drinking’ guidelines and an estimated 25,000 thought 
to be dependent.  Alcohol related death rates are 45% higher in areas of high 
deprivation. 

 
1.4 The annual cost of alcohol misuse in Leeds is estimated to be £275 million, of 

which £23 million is health related.   
 
1.5 The reduction of alcohol related harm is a specific improvement priority within 

the Health and Well-being Partnership Plan1 (2009-2012), supported by the 
Leeds Alcohol Strategy (2007-2010).   

 
 
2.0 Scope of the inquiry 
 

2.1 The purpose of the Inquiry is to make an assessment of and, where 
appropriate, make recommendations on: 

 

• The role of all partners in developing and delivering the targets associated with 
reducing alcohol related harm, as set out in the Leeds Health and Well-being 
Plan (2009-2012) and associated strategies. 

 

• The role of the Council in terms of licensing policy and associated 
enforcement/ control procedures. 

o What is the role of the Council in licensing the sale of alcohol? 
o What are the Council’s legislative powers in licensing the sale of 

alcohol? What scope is there for the Council to consider the health 
implications of alcohol consumption within its licensing role and 
function? 

o What is the role of the Director of Public Health in helping to inform the 
Council within its decision-making processes?  

 
 

                                            
1
  This reflects the priorities set out in the Leeds Strategic Plan (2008-2011) Page 119



APPENDIX 2 
 

• The social responsibility role of breweries, retailers and licensees and how this 
shapes the consumption of alcohol in Leeds. 

o What are the social responsibilities of those organisations associated 
with the production and sale of alcohol, including its promotion and 
managed consumption across Leeds? 

o How is the consumption of alcohol promoted and managed by those 
responsible for its production and sale across Leeds? 

 

• The role of the Council and its NHS health partners in: 
o Raising general public awareness of the health risks associated with 

alcohol consumption. 
o Identifying and targeting those groups most at risk from the affects of 

alcohol abuse and ensuring they have access to the most appropriate 
services and treatments. 

o Assessing the quality and effectiveness of services and treatments 
associated with reducing alcohol related harm. 

 
2.2 The Board hopes that its findings will provide a timely and positive contribution 

to the management of change. 
 
 
3.0 Comments of the relevant director and executive member 
 

3.1 Comments received on these draft terms of reference will be reflected in the 
final version. 

 
 
4.0 Timetable for the inquiry and submission of evidence 
 

4.1 The inquiry will commence in October 2006 and is likely to take place over a 
number of sessions.  Throughout the inquiry, the Board will consider any 
emerging issues to inform further sessions and/or the production of the final 
inquiry report.   

 
4.3 The Board will aim to conclude the inquiry before April 2010, with the 

publication of a formal report setting out the Board’s findings, conclusions and 
recommendations. 

 
 
5.0 Witnesses 
 

5.1 The following witnesses have been identified as possible contributors to the 
Inquiry: 
 

• Executive Board Member (Adult Health and Social Care) 

• Healthier Leeds Partnership representatives (TBC) 

• Director of Public Health (NHS Leeds) 

• Head of Licensing and Registrations (Leeds City Council) 

• Business Development Manager (Drug Action Team) 

• Ministerial representative (TBC) 

• Brewery representatives (TBC) 

• Licensee representatives (TBC) 

• Retailer (supermarket) representatives (TBC) 

• Service provider representatives (alcohol services and treatments) (TBC)  
 
 

Page 120



APPENDIX 2 
 

6.0 Monitoring Arrangements 
 

6.1 Following the completion of the scrutiny inquiry and the publication of the final 
inquiry report and recommendations, the implementation of the agreed 
recommendations will be monitored.   

 
6.2 The final inquiry report will include information on the detailed arrangements 

for monitoring the implementation of recommendations. 
 
7.0 Measures of success 
 

7.1 It is important to consider how the Board will deem whether its inquiry has 
been successful in making a difference to local people. Some measures of 
success may be obvious at the initial stages of an inquiry and can be included 
in these terms of reference. Other measures of success may become 
apparent as the inquiry progresses and discussions take place. 

 
7.2 The Board will look to publish practical recommendations. 

Page 121



Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

INQUIRY SELECTION CRITERIA 
 

Scrutiny Board   Health 
 
Inquiry Title  The role of the Council and Health Partners in reducing 

alcohol related harm  
 
Anticipated Start Date October 2009 
 
Anticipated Finish Date January / February 2010 
 

 
The Inquiry meets the following criteria 
 

ü 
● It addresses the Council’s agreed Strategic outcomes by reviewing  

 the effectiveness of policy to achieve strategic outcomes as defined  
 by the Council Corporate plan  

● Shaping and developing policy through influencing pre-policy 
       discussion ü 

 

It fulfils a performance management function by 
 

 

● Reviewing  performance of significant parts of service  
  

 

● Addressing a poor performing service 
 

 
 

● Addressing a high level of user dissatisfaction  with the service 
 

 
 

● Addressing a pattern of budgetary overspends 
 

 
 

● Addressing matters raised by external auditors and inspectors 
 

 

  

● Addresses an issue of high public interest 
 

 

● Reviews a Major or Key Officer decision 
 

 
 

● Reviews an Executive Board decision 
 

 
 

● Reviews a series of decisions which have a significant impact  
 

 
 

● Has been requested by the Executive Board/Full Council/Overview  
 and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
  

● looks at innovative change 
 

ü 

 

Comments of relevant Director and Executive Member: To be confirmed 
 

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Renal Services - Provision at Leeds General Infirmary
	2 Renal Services - Appendix 1 (timeline)
	3 LTHT briefing Appendix 2
	4 NHS Leeds and SCG submission Appendix 3
	5 KPA (LGI) submission Appendix 4
	6 KPA (SJH) submission Appendix 5
	7 National Kidney Federation submission Appendix 6

	8 Renal Services: Patient Transport Service
	9 Joint Performance Report: Quarter 4 - 2008/09
	App1 Health Action Tracker Summary
	Joint report (NHS Leeds and LCC) (July 2009)

	10 Recommendation Tracking
	Recommendation tracking flowchart
	Appendix 2 Recommendation Tracking

	11 Work Programme
	Work Programme Appendix 1
	Work Programme Appendix 2 (draft terms of reference)
	Work Programme Appendix 3


